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AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of Australian Pipeline Limited (“Responsible Entity”) submit their
report and the annual financial report of Australian Pipeline Trust (“APT”) and
its controlled entities (together “APA” or “Consolidated Entity”) for the financial
year ended 30 June 2012. This report refers to the consolidated results of APT
and APT Investment Trust (“APTIT”).

DIRECTORS

The names of the directors of the Responsible Entity during the year and since
the year end are:

Leonard Bleasel AM Chairman

Michael McCormack Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
Steven Crane

John Fletcher

Russell Higgins AO

Patricia McKenzie

Muri Muhammad

Robert Wright

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The following table provides a summary of key financial data for the year:

Details of the directors, their qualifications, experience, special responsibilities
and directorships of other listed entities are set out on pages 10 to 12.

Muri Muhammad gave notice on 25 July 2012 of his resignation from the board
of Australian Pipeline Limited with effect from 24 October 2012.

George Ratilal resigned as alternate director for Muri Muhammad on 9 May
2012.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mark Knapman

Details of the Company Secretary, his qualifications and experience are set out
on page 11.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of APA during the course of the year were the ownership
and operation of energy infrastructure assets and businesses, including:

— Energy infrastructure, primarily gas transmission businesses located across
Australia and the Emu Downs wind farm in Western Australia;

— Energy investments in listed and unlisted entities; and

— Asset management and operations services for the majority of APA’s
energy investments and for third parties.

2012 201 CHANGES
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE $000 $000 $000 %
Operating results including significant items
Total revenue 1,060,661 1,101,989 (41,328) (3.8)
Pass-through revenue @ 302,633 381,733 (79,100) (20.7)
Total revenue excluding pass-through 758,028 720,256 37772 5.2
EBITDA 525,825 492,109 33,716 6.9
Depreciation and amortisation expense (110,409) (100,350) (10,059) 10.0
EBIT 415,416 391,759 23,657 6.0
Net interest expense (234,326) (247,072) 12,746 (5.2)
Pre-tax profit 181,090 144,687 36,403 25.2
Income tax expense (50,435) (35,862) (14,573) 40.6
Minorities (5) (316) 3n (98.5)
Profit after tax and minorities, including significant items 130,650 108,509 22,41 20.4
Significant items after income tax (9,663) (432) (9,231)
Profit after income tax and minorities, excluding significant items 140,313 108,941 31,372 28.8
Operating cash flow 335,569 290,029 45,540 157
Operating cash flow per security (cents) 52.5 52.6 [(eN)) 0.2)
Earnings per security (cents) 20.4 19.7 0.7 3.6
Distribution per security (cents) 35.0 34.4 0.6 1.7
Distribution payout ratio ® 67.0% 65.7%
Net tangible asset per security $1.58 $1.51 $0.07 4.6
Weighted average number of securities (000) 639,743 551,222

(1) Pass-through revenue is revenue on which no margin is earned. Pass-through revenue arises in the asset management operations in respect of costs incurred in, and passed on to
Envestra in respect of the operation of the Envestra assets. It also arises in the NT Gas business for FY 2011.

(2) Significant items: FY 2012 - Profit on the sale of APA Gas Network business (Allgas) less transaction costs; FY 2011 - APA’s equity accounted share of the Investment Allowance
Concession benefit recognised on the commencement of generation of the North Brown Hill Wind Farm. APA has referenced the significant items to more accurately reflect the actual

trading results of the Group. The significant items have been audited.

(3) Operating cash flow = net cash from operations after interest and tax payments, adjusted for significant items.

(4) Distribution payout ratio = total distributions in relation to the financial year as a percentage of operating cash flow.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Operating profit after tax and minorities for the year was $130.7 million, an
increase of 20.4% on last year. APA’s profit contained one significant item with
an overall net negative impact of $9.7 million.

Revenue (excluding pass-through) increased by $37.8 million to $758.0 million,
an increase of 5.2% on last year, while earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA”) and after significant items increased by
$33.7 million to $525.8 million, an increase of 6.9%.

The main factors driving the increase in operating profit and EBITDA include:

— the additional earnings from new expansions;

— full year contribution of the Emu Downs wind farm business in Western
Australia;

— contribution of the new gas haulage contract on the Amadeus Gas Pipeline;
and

— reduced interest costs primarily due to the reduction in drawn debt
following the sale of the Allgas business.

The increase has been partially offset by the cessation of contributions from
the Allgas gas distribution network following its sale in December 2011.

Operating cash flow increased by 15.7% to $335.6 million (2011: $290.0 million),
while operating cash flow per security decreased by 0.2% or 0.1 cents to 52.5
cents per security (2011: 52.6 cents per security).

APA’s distributions for the financial year total 35.0 cents per security, an
increase of 1.7% or 0.6 cents on the prior financial year. APA achieved its
guidance of paying distributions in the 2012 financial year at least equal to
distributions in the 2011 financial year. The distribution payout ratio for 2012
was 67.0%, further demonstrating APA’s ability to fully fund its distributions out
of operating cash flows, while retaining significant operating cash flow in the
business to fund organic growth.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
During the year, APA issued the following two tranches of new securities under
its Distribution Reinvestment Plan:

— on 15 September 201, 5,218,596 securities at $3.88 per security raising
$20.2 million; and

— on 15 March 2012, 5,150,958 securities at $4.73 per security raising
$24.4 million.

At 30 June 2012, there were 644,485,583 securities on issue (30 June 2011
634,116,029) an increase of 1.6%.

APA continues to use the Distribution Reinvestment Plan in providing equity to
support its strong ongoing stock of organic growth and investment projects.

During the year APA completed the following debt refinancing programs:

— On 23 August 2011, APA entered into a new $75 million bilateral bank facility
for a term of three years, maturing in August 2014;

— On 12 October 2011, APA entered into a new $150 million bilateral bank
facility for a term of five years, maturing in October 2016;

— On 3 November 2011, APA announced the completion of a $1.45 billion
syndicated bank facility, with equal-sized two, three and four year tranches, to
refinance syndicated facilities due to mature in June 2012 and July 2013.
APA repaid these loans, with the final payment being made on 9 January 2012;

— On 24 January 2012, APA issued JPY 10 billion (A$125.9 million) six-year
five-month fixed-rate Medium Term Notes utilising documentation in place
under its established European MTN program; and

— On 28 June 2012, APA issued CAD 300 million (A$289.5 million) seven-year
one-month fixed rate Medium Term Notes utilising documentation in place
under its established European MTN program.

These new facilities were used to repay loans drawn under APA’s existing
revolving bank facilities, with the additional headroom created being available
to support APA’s ongoing investment in the growth of its infrastructure assets,
including the acquisition of Hastings Diversified Utilities Fund (“HDF”) if it
proceeds, and for general corporate purposes.

On 9 August 2012, APA lodged a prospectus with the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission (“ASIC”) for an offer of long-dated, unsecured,
subordinated, cumulative notes (“Notes”) to raise $350 million, with the ability
to raise more or less. A replacement prospectus was lodged with the ASIC on
17 August 2012 following the closure of the “exposure” period and finalisation
of the margin and revised offer size of $475 million. The Notes provide 50%
equity credit from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s and are not convertible into
stapled securities or any other securities. The Notes will be issued in mid-
September 2012 and will begin trading on the ASX under the code “AQHHA” in
late September 2012.

At 30 June 2012, APA’s debt portfolio has a broad spread of maturities
extending out to 2022, with a weighted average maturity of drawn debt of 4.8
years. APA has gearing of 65.0%' at 30 June 2012, down from 66.2% at 30 June
2011, primarily due to the reduction in net debt following receipt of funds from
the sale of APA’s Queensland Gas Network business.

At 30 June 2012, APA had in excess of $1.1 billion in cash and committed
undrawn facilities available to meet the continued capital growth needs of the
business and to fund the acquisition of HDF should the transaction proceed.

APA has a prudent treasury policy which requires conservative levels of
hedging of interest rate exposures to minimise the potential impacts from
adverse movements in rates. All interest rates and foreign currency exposures
on US Private Placement Notes and foreign currency denominated Medium
Term Notes have been hedged into fixed rate AUD obligations. APA also enters
into interest rate hedges for a proportion of the interest rate exposure on its
other floating rate borrowings. At 30 June 2012, 80.9% of interest obligations
were either hedged or set at fixed interest rates for varying periods extending
out for up to 9.9 years.

A level of interest rate protection is also provided through Consumer Price
Index (“CPI”) indexing in most revenue contracts and the regulatory revenue
setting process operating on a number of APA’s assets.

BORROWINGS AND FINANCE COSTS

As at 30 June 2012, APA had borrowings of $3,223.8 million ($3,239.9 million at
30 June 2011), principally from syndicated bank debt facilities, bilateral debt
facilities, US Private Placement notes, European Medium Term Notes and
Australian Medium Term Notes. Following the CAD 300 million European
Medium Term Note issue in June 2012, significant cash, in the order of
$280 million, was available to repay loans drawn under existing bank facilities
and so create additional facility headroom.

Net underlying finance costs decreased by $12.7 million, or 5.2%, to
$234.3 million (2011: $247.1 million) over last year primarily as a result of lower
drawn debt on average before the CAD bond issue, and lower floating interest
rates throughout the year ended 30 June 2012. This was somewhat offset by
acceleration of amortisation of borrowing costs related to bank debt facilities
being repaid early. The average interest rate (including credit margins) applying
to drawn debt was 7.39% for the year (2011: 7.47%). This figure excludes
commitment fees and borrowing costs.

APA’s interest cover ratio for the year increased to 2.48 times from 2.03 times
last year, remaining well in excess of its debt covenant default ratio of 1.1 times,
and distribution lock up ratio of 1.3 times.

1 Gearing ratio determined in accordance with covenants in all debt facilities as net debt to net debt plus book equity.
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CREDIT RATING
APT Pipelines Limited, the borrowing entity of APA, maintained its two
investment grade credit ratings during the year:

— BBB long term corporate credit rating (outlook Stable) from Standard and
Poor’s; and

— Baa2 long term corporate credit rating (outlook Stable) from Moody’s
Investors Service.

INCOME TAX

The effective income tax rate before significant items for the year 26.4%, up
from 24.8% last year. The increase has arisen predominantly as a result of the
Federal Government’s reversal of previously legislated changes to tax
consolidation rules dealing with “rights to future income”, together with the
prior year impact of investment allowances credits no longer being available.

Capital and investment expenditure for the year is detailed in the table below.

CAPITAL AND INVESTMENT EXPENDITURE

Capital and investment expenditure for the year totalled $295.5 million compared
with $516.1 million last year. Of this amount, $271.1 million was in respect of
investment and growth projects, including pipeline capacity expansion in
Queensland, New South Wales, Victoria and Western Australia, and the expansion
of the Mondarra Gas Storage Facility. The remaining $24.4 million of capital
expenditure related to stay in business or maintenance capital expenditure.

Growth expenditure was generally either fully underwritten through long-term
gas transportation agreements or had regulatory approval through a relevant
access arrangement.

During the period, APA increased its interest in Hastings Diversified Utilities
Fund (“HDF”) to 20.7% for $11.7 million, and increased its interest in Envestra to
33.4% for $28.8 million through participation
Reinvestment Plan in October 2011 and April 2012.

in Envestra’s Dividend

CAPITAL AND INVESTMENT EXPENDITURE DESCRIPTION OF 2012 MAJOR PROJECTS $ miIZIg:: $ millzi?n1

Growth expenditure

Regulated

Victorian Transmission System Euroa compression; Sunbury lateral looping project 35.1 334

APA Gas Networks (Qld) Includes southern network expansion 8.4 16.1
43.5 495

Major projects

Queensland Roma Brisbane Pipeline expansion 35.7 19.6

New South Wales Moomba Sydney Pipeline expansion; Young Marsden compression project 18.9 34.3

Western Australia Mondarra Gas Storage Facility; Goldfields Gas Pipeline expansions 116.4 39.8

Other National customer management system; Victorian metering 10.2 12.2
181.2 105.9

Acquisitions

Energy Infrastructure Purchalsle adeustments for Amadeus Gas Pipeline and Emu Downs wind farm 6.0 2288

acquisitions in FY 2011

Energy Investments Increased interest in ENV and HDF 40.4 13.9
46.4 3427

Total growth capex 2711 4981

Stay in business capex 24.4 18.0

Total capex 295.5 516.1

(1) The capital expenditure shown in this table represents actual cash payments as disclosed in the cash flow statement; it excludes accruals brought forward from the prior year and

carried forward to next year.
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DISTRIBUTIONS
Distributions paid to securityholders during the year were:
FINAL FY 2011 DISTRIBUTION INTERIM FY 2012 DISTRIBUTION
PAID 15 SEPTEMBER 2011 PAID 15 MARCH 2012
Cents per security Total distribution Cents per security Total distribution
$000 $000
APT profit distribution 3.42 19,054 4.54 29,034
APT capital distribution 8.41 46,761 6.52 41,655
APTIT profit distribution 3.4 18,295 3.88 24,797
APTIT capital distribution 2.66 15,449 2.06 13,201
Total 17.90 99,559 17.00 108,687

On 22 August 2012, the directors declared a final distribution for APA for the year of 18.0 cents per security payable 15 September 2012, made up of:

FINAL FY 2012 DISTRIBUTION
PAYABLE 14 SEPTEMBER 2012

Cents per security Total distribution

$000

APT profit distribution 5.09 32,786
APT capital distribution 7.32 47,182
APTIT profit distribution 3.28 21,160
APTIT capital distribution 2.31 14,879
Total 18.00 116,007

Total distribution for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 is 35.0 cents per security, an increase of 0.6 cents, or 1.7%, on the year ended 30 June 2011.

Distribution information is presented on an accounting classification basis. The APA Group Annual Tax Statement and Annual Tax Return Guide (to be released in

September 2012) provide the classification of distribution components for the purposes of preparation of securityholder income tax returns.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

The following significant changes in the state of affairs of APA occurred during the year:

— In December 2011 APA divested its Queensland Gas Network business (Allgas) into the newly established joint venture, GDI (Ell) Pty Limited (“GDI”). APA
retains a 20% equity interest in GDI with the remaining interest held by Marubeni Corporation and RREEF, each holding a 40% interest. APA remains as asset

manager and operator of the network under a long term agreement. The net proceeds of the transaction totalled $476 million.

— On 14 December 2011, APA announced an off-market takeover offer for HDF through APT Pipelines Limited for all the HDF securities which APA did not then
own. APA currently owns 20.7% per cent of HDF securities. HDF is an Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) listed investment vehicle whose assets include Epic
Energy’s three natural gas transmission pipeline systems, and is managed by Hastings Funds Management Limited. Further details of this transaction are found

on page 8 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS SEGMENT PERFORMANCES
APA’s operational and financial result reflects the steady growth across all business segments. Statutory reported revenue and EBITDA performance of APA’s
business segments is set out in the following table:

2012 201 CHANGES
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE $000 $000 $000 %
Revenue (continuing business)
Energy Infrastructure
Queensland @ 112,225 107,708 4,517 42
New South Wales 138,443 126,657 11,786 9.3
Victoria 161,297 151,209 10,088 6.7
South Australia 2,109 2,049 60 2.9
Western Australia 174,166 143,643 30,523 21.2
Northern Territory 21,734 13,850 7,884 56.9
Energy Infrastructure total 609,974 545116 64,858 1.9
Asset Management 69,295 68,647 648 0.9
Energy Investments 41,747 27,121 14,626 53.9
Total segment revenue 721,016 640,884 80,132 125
Pass-through revenue 302,633 381,733 (79,100) (20.7)
Unallocated revenue 6,317 12,932 (6,615) (51.2)
Divested business - Allgas @ 30,695 56,600
Significant items - 9,839
Total revenue 1,060,661 1,101,989 (41,327) (3.8)
EBITDA (continuing business)
Energy Infrastructure
Queensland @ 79,566 71,685 7,881 n.0
New South Wales 113,098 101,266 11,832 n.7
Victoria 121,549 114,263 7,286 6.4
South Australia 1,521 1,618 97 (6.0)
Western Australia 117,397 94,223 23174 24.6
Northern Territory 8,541 5,578 2,963 531
Energy Infrastructure total 441,672 388,633 53,039 13.6
Asset Management 31,910 38,740 (6,830) (17.6)
Energy Investments 41,751 27102 14,649 541
Total segment EBITDA 515,333 454,475 60,858 134
Divested business - Allgas @ 20,155 35114
Total EBITDA before significant items 535,488 489,589 45,899 9.4
Significant items ® (9,663) 2,521
Total EBITDA 525,825 492,109 33,715 6.9

(1) Excludes the Allgas business contribution in 2011 and 2012.
(2) APA Gas Network Queensland (Allgas) was sold into GDI (Ell) Pty Ltd in December 2011.

(3) FY12 - relates to the profit less transaction costs on the sale of Allgas in December 2011. FY11 - relates to APA’s equity share of the ElI2 Investment Allowance Concession benefit
($9.8m in revenue & EBITDA), sale of CAMS ($1.7m) reduced by transaction costs on the Emu Downs wind farm acquisition ($9.0m).

(4) Pass-through revenue of NT Gas business ceased following acquisition of the Amadeus Gas Pipeline (June 2011).
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ENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE
The Energy Infrastructure segment includes gas transmission and distribution
assets along with the Emu Downs wind farm.

The Energy Infrastructure segment (continuing business) contributed 85% of
segment revenue (excluding pass-through revenue) and 86% of segment
EBITDA. Revenue (excluding pass-through revenue) was $610.0 million, an
increase of 11.9% on the $545.1 million reported last year. EBITDA increased by
13.6% to $441.7 million (2011: $388.7 million).

The following key factors contributed to this result:

— Queensland revenue and EBITDA increased with new contracts and the
recovery of costs in connection with flood damage incurred in FY20T11;

— New South Wales increase in revenue and EBITDA is mainly due to new gas
haulage contracts;

— Victorian revenue and EBITDA increase reflects the annual increase in
tariffs, offset by lower gas volumes through the Victorian Transmission
System due to milder weather;

— Western Australia experienced the greatest increase, primarily as a result of
the inclusion of the first full year of contribution from the Emu Downs wind
farm business; and

— The Northern Territory result reflects the acquisition of the Amadeus Gas
Pipeline and the new gas transportation agreement - the pipeline was
previously leased and contracted on a cost based system.

APA continues to focus on the operation, development and enhancement of its
gas transmission and distribution assets across mainland Australia.

Queensland

— Roma Brisbane Pipeline
APA completed the $50 million expansion of the pipeline in August 2012,
increasing capacity by approximately 10%. The project included additional
compression, pipeline pressure upgrades and augmentation of the pipeline
in the Brisbane metropolitan area. The additional capacity has been
substantially contracted under long term transportation agreements with
an energy retailer and a major industrial gas user.

The project to repair damage to the pipeline easement caused by the 2011
floods was largely completed, with some work continuing in the Marburg
region, west of Brisbane. During the year APA recovered some of the repair
cost from its insurance provider and it is expected to recover the remaining
amount in FY2013.

— Carpentaria Gas Pipeline and Diamantina Power Station

In October 2011 APA announced that it will jointly develop the Diamantina
Power Station at Mount Isa with AGL Energy. The 242 MW gas fired power
station will be supplied with gas via the Carpentaria Gas Pipeline. The power
station is underpinned by 17-year energy supply agreements with Mount Isa
Mines Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Xstrata, and Ergon Energy, the
State owned regional electricity supplier. Under the arrangements, AGL has
contracted transportation capacity in the Carpentaria Gas Pipeline for an
initial ten year period.

The 242 MW power station is being constructed under a turn-key contract
with CTEC Pty Limited and is expected to be fully operational in early 2014.

Once project financing is in place and construction of the power station
is completed, APA’s investment in the power station of approximately
$100 million is expected to be funded from headroom under existing
debt facilities.

New South Wales

Moomba Sydney Pipeline

Work continued on the $100 million five-year capacity expansion program
of the Moomba Sydney Pipeline. Capital expenditure for the year was
$15 million, bringing the total spent thus far to $71 million. The Young
compressor station was completed in the first half of the year.

Victoria

Victorian Transmission System

Total gas volume transported through the Victorian Transmission System
was 229.7 PJ, down 6.5% on last year (245.7 PJ) due to milder weather,
lower industrial demand and lower gas demand for power generation. Peak
day volume of 1,151 TJ was down 3.3% on last year (1,190 TJ).

APA continued work on capital projects which provide both additional
capacity and security of supply for the Victorian Gas Transmission System.
These projects include installation of additional compression at Euroa, part
of the northern augmentation project, and looping of the Sunbury lateral,
with funding approved within the system’s current (2008-2013) regulatory
arrangements.

Western Australia

Goldfields Gas Pipeline

In December 2011 and January 2012, APA announced two new capacity
expansions on the pipeline totalling 44 TJ/day, an increase of 28% of the
pipeline’s capacity. These expansions are underpinned by a new 20-year
gas transportation agreement with Rio Tinto and a new 15-year gas
transportation agreement with the Mount Newman Joint Venture (85% BHP
Billiton) respectively.

Work has commenced on these two expansions, namely design and
purchase of long lead time equipment and material. The work primarily
involves the upgrade of compression at two existing compressor stations
(Yarraloola and Paraburdoo) and the construction of two new compressor
stations (Turee Creek and Newman inlet), for a total capital cost of
approximately $150 million. APA is managing the construction project on
behalf of the Goldfields Gas Transmission Joint Venture through which APA
owns 88.2% of the Goldfields Gas Pipeline. The additional capacity will be
available in 2014.

Mondarra Gas Storage Facility

APA is expanding its Mondarra Gas Storage Facility following execution of a
20-year foundation contract for storage capacity with Verve Energy in May
2011. Construction work is continuing on the surface facilities, which includes
pipeline interconnects and treatment plants.

Completion of the expanded capacity is scheduled for mid-2013. The facility
is continuing to operate its existing contracted storage services during this
expansion period.

The expansion will provide APA’s customers with supply options and
flexibility to better manage their gas supply and demand portfolios.

Emu Downs wind farm

In June 2011, APA acquired the 80 MW Emu Downs wind farm and adjoining
development site in Western Australia. The first year of financial and
operational performance of the wind farm under APA’s ownership has been
in line with APA’s expectations.
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ASSET MANAGEMENT

APA provides asset management and operational services to the majority of its
energy investments and a number of third parties. Its main customers are
Envestra Limited, Ethane Pipeline Income Fund, SEA Gas Pipeline, Diamantina
Power Station joint venture, Energy Infrastructure Investments, GDI and EIll2.
Asset management and operational services are provided to these customers
under long term contracts.

Revenue (excluding pass-through revenue) from such services increased by
0.9% to $69.3 million (2011: $68.6 million) and EBITDA decreased by 17.6% to
$31.9 million, (2011: $38.7 million), mainly due to reduction in Envestra incentive
payments partially offset by additional third party work in Western Australia
and Northern Territory.

ENERGY INVESTMENTS

APA has an interest in a number of energy investments across Australia,
including Envestra Limited, SEA Gas Pipeline, Energy Infrastructure
Investments, Ethane Pipeline Income Fund, Ell2 (investment in the North

Brown Hill wind farm), GDI and Hastings Diversified Utilities Fund (HDF).

All investments are equity accounted, with the exception of APA’s interest in
Ethane Pipeline Income Fund and Hastings Diversified Utilities Fund.

EBITDA increased by 54.1% to $41.8 million, up from $27.1 million last year,
mainly due to increases in Envestra’s and SEA Gas’s profitability.

APA participated in Envestra’s Distribution Reinvestment Plan during the year,
with the total value of distributions reinvested of $28.8 million. As at 30 June
2012, APA’s interest in Envestra was 33.4%.

SALE OF APA GAS NETWORK BUSINESS AND ESTABLISHMENT OF GDI

On 14 December 2011, APA announced the sale of its Queensland Gas Network
business (Allgas) into a minority-owned joint venture, GDI (Ell) Pty Limited.
APA retains a 20% equity interest in the joint venture, with equity partners
Marubeni Corporation and RREEF each holding a 40% interest. APA also
remains as asset manager and operator of the network under a 10-year asset
management agreement, with two 5-year extension options. Financial close
occurred on 16 December 2011.

The net enterprise value (after transaction costs) of the new joint venture is
$526 million, with equity contributions totalling $247 million and a new three
and five-year, non-recourse project debt facility of $310 million.

The net funds released from the sale of $475.7 million have been used to reduce
APA debt and provide further headroom to support APA’s growth strategy.
APA recorded a $12.0 million profit on sale before transaction costs. After
taking transaction costs of $21.7 million (including stamp duty) into account,
APA reported a loss of $9.7 million in respect of the transaction.

TAKEOVER OFFER FOR HASTINGS DIVERSIFIED UTILITIES FUND (HDF)

On 14 December 2011, APA announced an off-market takeover offer for
Hastings Diversified Utilities Fund (HDF) through APT Pipelines Limited for all
the HDF securities which APA did not then own. APA currently owns 20.7% per
cent of HDF securities.

HDF is an ASX listed investment vehicle whose assets include Epic Energy’s
three natural gas transmission pipeline systems, and is managed by Hastings
Funds Management Limited. Each of the Epic Energy pipelines can be
interconnected with pipelines owned or managed by APA.

APA lodged its Bidder’s Statement on 15 December 2011 and dispatched this
document together with a First Supplementary Bidder’s Statement on
3 January 2012. APA lodged a Second Supplementary Bidder’s Statement in
response to HDF’s Target’s Statement on 31 January 2012, and a Third
Supplementary Bidder’s Statement on 22 February 2012.
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On 19 July 2012, the Australian Competition and Consumer Commission
announced that it would not oppose the proposed acquisition by APA of HDF
on the basis of the undertaking from APA to divest HDF’s Moomba Adelaide
Pipeline System once APA changes the responsible entity of HDF.

On 17 August 2012 APA announced a revised offer consideration and will
shortly issue a further Supplementary Bidder’s Statement. The HDF takeover
offer is open until 4 September 2012 unless extended or withdrawn and is
currently subject to a number of conditions. APA has reserved the right to
waive these conditions.

TOTAL SECURITYHOLDER RETURNS

During the year APA’s market capitalisation increased by 37% to $3.24 billion at
30 June 2012. Distributions declared during the year amounted to $0.35 per
APA security. APA’s total securityholder returns, which accounts for the capital
appreciation of APA’s security price and assumes the reinvestment of
distributions at the declared time, was placed in the top 90th percentile of Total
Shareholder Returns for ASX listed companies.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Key regulatory matters addressed during the current period included:

Roma Brisbane Pipeline access arrangement

On 12 October 2011, APA submitted a revised access arrangement proposal for
the Roma Brisbane Pipeline to the Australian Energy Regulator (“AER”). The
AER issued its final decision on 10 August 2012 in which it determined to
approve and publish its own access arrangement for the pipeline.

The AER’s decision provides for an initial 8.75% increase in the reference tariff
followed by annual increases thereafter. This decision has minimal impact on
APA’s revenue. The majority of APA’'s Roma Brisbane Pipeline revenue is
derived from haulage contracts which have set terms, including pricing for the
life of the contract, and therefore is not impacted by the AER’s final decision.

Goldfields Gas Pipeline access arrangement

On 5 August 2010 the Economic Regulation Authority of Western Australia
(“ERA”) released its further final decision and installed its own access
arrangement. APA, on behalf of the Goldfields Gas Pipeline owners, pursued a
merits review of the ERA’s decision. This review was completed during the year.
APA was successful in the coverage test for expansion of pipeline capacity and
cost allocation methodology.

Victorian Transmission System access arrangement

In April 2012 APA submitted a revised access arrangement proposal for the
Victorian Gas Transmission System to the AER. The AER is currently assessing
the proposal and its draft decision is expected in September 2012.

Amadeus Gas Pipeline access arrangement

At the conclusion of the access arrangement review process the AER approved
and published its own access arrangement and access arrangement information
for the Amadeus Gas Pipeline on 27 July 2011. The gas transportation agreement
between APA and Power and Water Corporation is not impacted by this access
arrangement.

Proposed changes to the National Gas Rules

In October 2011 the AER proposed amendments to the National Gas Rules that
would change the process and methodology to determine the allowed rate of
return. APA, together with other industry participants is opposing the proposed
The Australian Energy Market Commission
undertaking an extensive review of the proposed amendments and a final
determination is expected in November 2012.

amendments. is currently
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

Health and safety reporting

The Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (“LTIFR”)? for APA employees was 2.2 for
the year, significantly down from 6.2 last year. There were five reportable lost
time injuries during the year, compared with 13 last year.

APA remains committed to a ‘zero harm’ environment and in September 2011
implemented a National APA Group Health Safety & Environment Management
System, integrating the various legacy systems and adopting best practice
across the Group.

Environmental regulations

All pipeline, distribution and gas processing assets owned and/or operated by
APA are designed, constructed, tested, operated and maintained in accordance
with pipeline and distribution licences issued by the relevant state and territory
technical regulators. All licences require compliance with relevant federal, state
and territory environmental legislation and Australian standards.

The pipeline licences also require compliance with the Australian Standard AS
2885 “Pipelines - Gas and Liquid Petroleum”, which has specific requirements

Environmental reporting

for the management of environmental matters associated with all aspects of
the high pressure pipeline industry.

Environmental management plans satisfying Part A of the Australian Pipeline
Industry Association Code of Environmental Practice are prepared and
independently audited for construction activities. In accordance with Part 3 of
AS 2885, environmental management plans satisfying Part B of the Code are in
place for all operating pipelines and are managed in accordance with APA’s
contracts and the terms and conditions of the licences that APA has been
issued.

The Safety and Operating Plan for APA’s distribution networks have been
audited in accordance with the Queensland and New South Wales technical
regulatory requirements.

The board reviews external audit reports and, on a monthly basis, the internal
reports prepared relating to environmental issues. No breaches have been
reported during the year and APA has managed the assets in accordance with
the environmental management plans that are in place.

In the year, APA complied with Australia’s National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting obligations. Energy reporting for financial year 2012 will be submitted in

October 2012.

APA’s performance on two key measures is set out in the following table:

FINANCIAL YEAR 20m 2010 CHANGE
Scope 1 CO2 emissions (tonnes) 297,099 305,076 (7977) (2.6)%
Energy consumption (GJ) 3,361,679 3,248,069 113,610 35%

Introduction of carbon legislation

A major element of the Clean Energy Act 2011, passed by the Senate on
8 November 2011, is the introduction of legislation to reduce carbon emissions.
The legislation put a price on carbon from 1 July 2012. This carbon price
mechanism will eventually act as an incentive for major emitters to switch to
less carbon intensive ways of doing business, such as switching from coal-fired
generation to gas-fired and renewable generation.

APA’s emissions are mainly the result of the combustion of natural gas in
compressor stations and from fugitive emissions within our networks. APA
assets and investments impacted by the new carbon legislation are the Roma
Brisbane Pipeline, Moomba Sydney Pipeline, Goldfields Gas Pipeline, the
Victorian Transmission System, Allgas gas distribution network, X41 Power
Station and Daandine Power Station.

APA’s carbon costs exposure is immaterial. APA expects to recover all carbon
related costs from its regulated assets under the access arrangement review
process. For non-regulated assets, APA has implemented changes to its
contracts with carbon pass-through clauses included in all new contracts. APA
has also implemented changes to systems and processes across the business to
meet the requirements of the new legislation.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the directors are unaware of any
matter or circumstance that has occurred since the end of the year that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the
Consolidated Entity, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the
Consolidated Entity in future years.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Disclosure of information regarding likely developments in the operation of the
Consolidated Entity in future years and the expected results of those operations,
other than information disclosed elsewhere in this report, is likely to result in
unreasonable prejudice to the Consolidated Entity. Accordingly, this information
has not been disclosed in this report.

2 Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate is work hours lost as a result of injury at work, multiplied by one million, divided by the total hours worked.
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INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Information relating to the qualifications and experience of the directors and Company Secretary is set out below:

Leonard Bleasel AM
FAICD FAIM

Independent Chairman
Appointed 28 August 2007

Appointed Chairman
30 October 2007

Leonard (Len) Bleasel is a lead non-executive director of QBE Insurance Group Limited and a director of O’Connell Street
Associates Pty Limited. He is Chairman of the Taronga Conservation Society Australia and Chairman of the Advisory Council
for RBS Group (Australia) Pty Limited.

Len had a long career in the energy industry before retiring from management in 2001. He started his career in AGL in
1958 and worked in a variety of roles, culminating in the position of Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer from
1990 to 2001.

Len’s past appointments have included Chairman of Foodland Associated Limited, ABN AMRO Australia Holdings Pty
Limited, Solaris Power, the Australian Gas Association, Natural Gas Corporation Holdings Ltd (New Zealand), Elgas Ltd,
Auscom Holdings Pty Ltd, Industrial Pipe Systems Pty Ltd and East Australian Pipeline Ltd, a director of St George Bank
Limited and Gas Valpo (Chile), and Vice President of the Royal Blind Society.

Len was awarded an AM in the General Division of the Order of Australia for services to the Australian gas and energy
industries and the community.

Michael McCormack

BSurv GradDipEng

MBA FAICD

Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director

Appointed Chief Executive Officer
1 July 2005

Appointed Managing Director
1July 2006

Michael (Mick) McCormack has been Chief Executive Officer of APA since 1 July 2005 and Managing Director since
1 July 2006.

Mick has over 25 years’ experience in the gas infrastructure sector in Australia, and his career has encompassed all aspects
of the sector, including commercial development, design, construction, operation and management of most of Australia’s
natural gas pipelines and gas distribution systems.

Mick is a director of Envestra Limited and the Australian Pipeline Industry Association.

Steven Crane

BComm FAICD SFFin
Independent Director
Appointed 1 January 2011

Steven Crane has over 30 years’ experience in the financial services industry. Steven’s background is in investment banking,
having previously been Chief Executive Officer of ABN AMRO Australia (now RBS Group Australia) and BZW Australia.

He has considerable experience as a non-executive director of listed entities. He is currently Chairman of nib holdings
limited, a director of Bank of Queensland Limited, Transfield Services Limited, Taronga Conservation Society Australia, a
member of the Advisory Council for RBS Group (Australia) Pty Limited , and was formerly Chairman of Adelaide Managed
Funds Limited, Investa Property Group Limited and formerly a director of Adelaide Bank Limited, Foodland Associated
Limited and APA Ethane Limited, the responsible entity of Ethane Pipeline Income Fund.

Steven is a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

John Fletcher

BSc MBA FAICD
Independent Director
Appointed 27 February 2008

John Fletcher has over 35 years’ experience in the energy industry, having held a number of executive positions in AGL prior
to his retirement in 2003, including Chief Financial Officer. John has previously been a director of Integral Energy, Natural
Gas Corporation Holdings Ltd (New Zealand), Foodland Associated Limited and Alinta Energy Group. He brings a wide
commercial and financial practical knowledge to the board.

John was previously an AGL appointed director of Australian Pipeline Limited from 2000 to 2005. He is also a director of
Sydney Water.

John is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Russell Higgins AO

BEc FAICD

Independent Director
Appointed 7 December 2004

Russell Higgins has extensive experience both locally and internationally in the energy sector and in economic and fiscal
policy. He was Secretary and Chief Executive Officer of the Department of Industry, Science and Resources from 1997 to
2002 and Chairman of the Australian Government’s Energy Task Force from 2003 to 2004.

Russell is a director of Telstra Corporation Limited and Argo Investments Limited. He is the Chairman of the Global Carbon
Capture and Storage Institute and the CSIRO Energy Transformed Flagship Advisory Committee, and a director of
Ricegrowers Limited (trading as SunRice) and the St James Ethics Foundation. He is a former Chairman of the Snowy
Mountains Council and the Australian Government’s Management Improvement Advisory Committee and a former director
of Australian Biodiesel Group Limited, EFIC, CSIRO, Austrade and Australian Industry Development Corporation, as well as a
former member of the Australian Government’s Joint Economic Forecasting Group. In 2006-07, he was a member of the
Prime Ministerial Task Group on Emissions Trading.

Russell is Chairman of the Health, Safety and Environment Committee and a member of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.
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Patricia McKenzie

LLB MAICD
Independent Director
Appointed 1 January 2011

Patricia McKenzie has considerable expertise and experience in energy market regulation and, as a qualified solicitor,
extensive corporate legal experience. She was formerly a director of Australian Energy Market Operator Limited (AEMO), the
national energy market operator for electricity and gas, and the Chief Executive Officer of Gas Market Company Limited, the
market administrator for retail competition in the gas industry in New South Wales and the Australian Capital Territory.
Patricia is also Chair of Diabetes Australia Limited and a director of National Health Call Centre Network Limited.

Patricia is a member of the Health, Safety and Environment Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Muri Muhammad

MSc

Director

Appointed 8 March 2000

Muri Muhammad retired from Petronas in August 2002 and was reappointed as Petronas’ Adviser, Gas Business in the
President’s Office until 30 March 2005. He brings 30 years’ experience in the chemicals and petroleum industry as well as
expertise in the domestic and international gas transmission and distribution, gas utilisation, cogeneration and conversion
businesses where he has held various senior executive positions.

Muri was Petronas’ Vice President for Gas Business from 1998 until his retirement and held several directorships, some as
Chairman, of a number of Petronas’ subsidiaries and associate companies in Malaysia and abroad. He currently sits on the
boards of Petronas Gas Berhad of Malaysia, Papua New Guinea’s national petroleum and minerals corporation and Petromin
PNG Holdings Limited. He was also a member of the Malaysian Energy Commission, a Malaysian Government regulatory body.

Muri is a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Health, Safety and Environment Committee.

Muri gave notice on 25 July 2012 of his resignation from the board of Australian Pipeline Limited with effect from
24 October 2012.

Robert Wright
BComm FCPA
Independent Director

Appointed 11 February 2000

Robert Wright has over 30 years’ financial management experience, having held a number of Chief Financial Officer
positions, including Finance Director of David Jones Limited. He is currently the Chairman of SAI Global Limited, Super Retail
Group Limited and APA Ethane Limited, the responsible entity of Ethane Pipeline Income Fund and was previously Chairman
of Dexion Limited and RCL Group Limited.

Robert is the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and a member of the Health Safety and Environment
Committee.

Mark Knapman
BComm LLB FCSA FCIS
Company Secretary
Appointed 16 July 2008

In addition to being responsible for the secretariat function, Mark oversees corporate governance and the legal, internal
audit and financial services compliance functions.

Mark has extensive experience as a Company Secretary. He was Company Secretary and General Counsel of an ASX-listed
company and Asia Pacific Legal Counsel and Company Secretary for a US multinational company prior to joining APA. Prior
to those roles he was a partner of an Australian law firm.

Mark is a Fellow of Chartered Secretaries Australia and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and is
admitted to practice as a solicitor.
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DIRECTORSHIPS OF OTHER LISTED COMPANIES

Directorships of other listed companies held by directors at any time in the three years immediately before the end of the year are as follows:

NAME COMPANY

PERIOD OF DIRECTORSHIP

Leonard Bleasel AM QBE Insurance Group Limited

Since January 2001

Michael McCormack Envestra Limited

Since July 2007

Steven Crane Transfield Services Limited
Bank of Queensland Limited
NIB Holdings Limited

APA Ethane Limited ®

Since February 2008
Since December 2008
Since September 2010

July 2008 to June 2011

John Fletcher Alinta Energy Group

October 2006 to April 2010

Russell Higgins AO Ricegrowers Limited

Since December 2005

Telstra Corporation Limited Since September 2009
Argo Investments Limited Since September 2011
Patricia McKenzie - -
Muri Muhammad - -
Robert Wright SAl Global Limited Since October 2003

Super Retail Group Limited
APA Ethane Limited @
Dexion Limited

RCL Group Limited

Since May 2004
Since July 2008
March 2005 to August 2010

May 2006 to February 2012

(1) APA Ethane Limited is the responsible entity of the registered investment schemes that comprise Ethane Pipeline Income Fund, the securities in which are quoted on the ASX.

OPTIONS GRANTED

In this report, the term “APA securities” refers to the stapled securities each
comprising a unit in Australian Pipeline Trust stapled to a unit in APT Investment
Trust and traded on the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX”) under the code
“APA”.

No options over unissued APA securities were granted during or since the end
of the year.

No unissued APA securities were under option as at the date of this report.

No APA securities were issued during or since the end of the year as a result of
the exercise of an option over unissued APA securities.
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INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND
EXTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year, the Responsible Entity paid a premium in respect of a contract
insuring the directors of the Responsible Entity, the Responsible Entity’s
Company Secretary, and all executive officers of the Responsible Entity and
any related body corporate of APA against any liability incurred in performing
those roles to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract
of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of
the premium.

Australian Pipeline Limited, in its capacity as Responsible Entity of Australian
Pipeline Trust and APT Investment Trust, indemnifies each person who is or has
been a director or Company Secretary of the Responsible Entity or of any
related body corporate of APA under a range of deed polls and indemnity
agreements which have been in place since 1 July 2000. This indemnity may
extend to such other officers or former officers of APA as the board, at its sole
discretion, in each case determines. The indemnity operates to the full extent
allowed by law but only to the extent not covered by insurance and is on terms
the board considers usual for arrangements of this type.

Under its constitution, Australian Pipeline Limited (in its personal capacity)
indemnifies each person who is or has been a director, Company Secretary or
executive officer of that company.

The Responsible Entity has not otherwise, during or since the end of the year,
indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or external auditor of the
Responsible Entity or of any related body corporate of APA against a liability
incurred as such an officer or auditor.



AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

During the year, 18 board meetings, three Remuneration Committee meetings, four Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings and four Health, Safety and
Environment Committee meetings were held. The following table sets out the number of meetings attended by each director while they were a director or a

committee member:

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

HEALTH, SAFETY AND

BOARD REMUNERATION COMMITTEE COMMITTEE ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE
DIRECTORS A B A B A A B
Leonard Bleasel AM ® 18 18 - - - - -
Michael McCormack 18 18 N - - - -
Steven Crane 18 18 3 3 4 - -
John Fletcher 18 18 3 3 4 - -
Russell Higgins AO 18 17 - - 4 4 4
Patricia McKenzie 18 18 3 3 - 4 4
Muri Muhammad 18 16 3 3 - 4 3
Robert Wright 18 18 - - 4 4 3

A: Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the committee during the year.

B: Number of meetings attended.
(1) The Chairman also attends all committee meetings ex officio.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITYHOLDINGS

The aggregate number of APA securities held directly, indirectly or beneficially by directors or their related entities at the 30 June 2012 is 980,057 (2011: 862,442).

The following table sets out directors’ relevant interests in APA securities as at 30 June 2012:

FULLY PAID FULLY PAID

SECURITIES SECURITIES SECURITIES SECURITIES

DIRECTORS AS AT 1JULY 201 ACQUIRED DISPOSED  AS AT 30 JUNE 2012
Leonard Bleasel AM 375,405 67,688 - 443,093
Michael McCormack 170,619 24,645 - 195,264
Steven Crane 100,000 - - 100,000
John Fletcher 60,026 3,272 - 63,298
Russell Higgins AO 79,503 6,657 - 86,160
Patricia McKenzie - 12,500 - 12,500
Muri Muhammad 42,818 - - 42,818
Robert Wright 34,07 2,853 - 36,924
862,442 17,615 - 980,057

The directors hold no other rights or options over APA securities. There are no contracts to which a director is a party or under which the director is entitled to a

benefit that confers a right to call for or deliver APA securities.

The Company Secretary holds 7,000 APA securities.



AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction

At APA, we are committed to disclosing a clear and transparent summary of our remuneration arrangements.

This report explains our approach to remuneration and sets out key 2012 remuneration details for the directors of the Responsible Entity and key management

personnel of APA.

The people currently in these positions are listed below:

DIRECTORS OF THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY

Leonard Bleasel AM Chairman APA Group

Michael McCormack
Steven Crane

John Fletcher
Russell Higgins AO
Patricia McKenzie
Muri Muhammad

Robert Wright

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

Chairman Remuneration Committee

Chairman Health, Safety and Environment Committee

Chairman Audit and Risk Management Committee

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Michael McCormack
Peter Fredricson Chief Financial Officer
Ross Gersbach
Robert Wheals
John Ferguson
Kevin Lester
Stephen Ohl

Mark Knapman Company Secretary

Peter Wallace

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

Chief Executive Strategy and Development
Group Executive Transmission

Group Executive Networks

Group Executive Infrastructure Development

Group Executive Strategic Projects

Group Executive Human Resources

(1) Kevin Lester joined APA as Group Executive Infrastructure Development on 6 August 2012.

Have there been any changes to the executive remuneration structure in
respect to 2012?

There have been no changes to the remuneration structure in respect to 2012.
However, the remuneration structure remains continuously under review to
ensure that that the organisation maintains appropriate pay structures to
attract and retain suitably qualified staff.

Remuneration Committee

What is the role of the Remuneration Committee?

The Remuneration Committee has been established by the board to govern
and oversee executive remuneration. The role of the Remuneration Committee
is to:

— ensure the provision of a robust remuneration and reward system that
provides for the alignment of employee and securityholder interests;

— consider and make recommendations to the board on remuneration policies
and packages applicable to directors and to senior executives of APA;

— facilitate effective attraction, retention and development of talented
employees;

— ensure compliance with relevant legislation and corporate governance
principles on remuneration practices and employment policies; and

— promote diversity, on the basis of gender and other factors, in APA Group’s
workforce and to review the effectiveness of diversity practices and
initiatives.

14 APA GROUP  ANNUAL REPORT 2012

The members of the Remuneration Committee, all of whom are non-executive
directors, are:

— John Fletcher (Chairman);
— Steven Crane;

— Patricia McKenzie; and

— Muri Muhammad.

The Chairman of the board attends all meetings of the Remuneration
Committee and the Managing Director attends by invitation. The Remuneration
Committee met three times during the year.

The Remuneration Committee may seek external professional advice on any
matter within its terms of reference.

Our approach to non-executive director remuneration

We seek to attract and retain a high calibre of directors who are equipped with
diverse skills to oversee all functions of APA in an increasingly complex
environment.

We aim to fairly remunerate directors for their services relative to similar sized
organisations.

Non-executive director remuneration comprises:

— abase board fee;
— an additional fee for serving on a committee of the board; and
— superannuation contributions.
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The board determines base board fees and committee fees annually. The board
acts on advice from the Remuneration Committee which obtains external
professional advice from independent remuneration specialists. Such advice
includes market comparisons paid by comparable companies in the ASX 200.

Non-executive directors do not receive incentive payments of any type. One off
‘per diems’ may be paid in exceptional circumstances. No payments have been

Board approved fees and committee fees

made under this arrangement in this reporting period.

In 2003, the board terminated the non-executive directors’ retirement benefit
plan so that the benefits to participating directors that had accrued up to that
termination date were then quantified and preserved for payment on retirement
of those directors. Robert Wright is the only current director entitled to benefits
under the plan on his retirement from the board.

Following external benchmarking and a review of APA’s performance relative to other companies, base board fees and fees for serving on a committee of the

board were increased effective 1 January 2012.

Base board fees and committee fees are outlined below:

CHAIRMAN MEMBER
rees $000/PA $000/PA
Board fees 298 no
Remuneration Committee fees 26 13
Effective 1 January 2012
Audit and Risk Management Committee fees 34 17
Health, Safety and Environment Committee fees 24 12
Board fees 280 102
Effective 1 January 2011 to Remuneration Committee fees 23 15
31 December 2011 Audit and Risk Management Committee fees 32 16
Health, Safety and Environment Committee fees 23 1.5

(1) Excludes superannuation levy.

Actual payments for period

Actual remuneration received by non-executive directors during the year is outlined in the table below:

FEES  SUPERANNUATION TOTAL PAID 2012 TOTAL PAID 201
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ? $ $ $ $
Leonard Bleasel AM 289,000 24,400 313,400 293,250
Steven Crane 134,750 12,128 146,878 63,084
John Fletcher 117,000 43,250 160,250 149,335
Russell Higgins AO 146,000 13,145 159,145 158,452
Patricia McKenzie 130,000 1,675 141,675 61,858
Muri Muhammad 130,000 - 130,000 121,500
Robert Wright 150,750 13,550 164,300 153,965
George Ratilal @ - - - 16,000
Total 1,097,500 118,148 1,215,648 1,017,444

(1) The remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director, Michael McCormack, is included with the actual remuneration disclosures for key management personnel for

FY 2012 on page 19.
(2) George Ratilal resigned as a director on 26 August 2010.
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Our approach to executive remuneration
What is our executive remuneration strategy?
Our executive remuneration strategy is to:

— attract and retain key executives who will create long-term sustainable value for securityholders;

— motivate and reward executives having regard to the overall performance of APA, the performance of the executive measured against pre-determined
objectives and the external compensation environment;

— target at least the market median using external benchmark data;

— appropriately align the interests of executives with those of securityholders; and

— comply with applicable legal requirements and appropriate standards of governance.

We aim to pay competitive remuneration and this is communicated as Total Remuneration Opportunity (“TRO”).

Total
Remuneration =
Opportunity

Total Fixed Short-term
Remuneration + Incentive +
(TFR) (STI)
-
Y

Performance based ‘at risk’ remuneration

Each individual’s TRO is dependent on their level in the organisation and their capacity to influence outcomes.

What is the remuneration mix?

APA’s remuneration mix for senior executives is structured as a mix of fixed remuneration and ‘at risk’ short and long-term incentive components. The proportion

of fixed versus ‘at risk’ remuneration varies at different levels within APA, reflecting the varying capacity of employees to influence APA’s operational performance

and returns to securityholders.

For the Managing Director and other key management personnel, the remuneration mix is:

Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director

40%

30%

N— ‘at risk’ components —

Other key management
personnel®

50%

25%

An overview of remuneration components

— ‘at risk’ components —

[]JTFR  []sTI

Each remuneration component has a different purpose:

REMUNERATION COMPONENT

PURPOSE

L

HOW REWARD IS DELIVERED

Total Fixed Remuneration (“TFR”)

To reflect the market value of the role and the
individual’s skills and experience.

The total of base salary (which includes cash,
superannuation levy, vehicles and parking) and
incidental benefits paid in monthly instalments.

‘AT RISK’ COMPONENTS

Short-term incentive (“STI”)

To reward strong performance against the
achievement of specific business objectives.

Cash-based incentive based on a mix of financial and

non-financial key performance indicators paid

annually after the audited accounts are approved.

Long-term incentive (“LTI”)

To link executive reward with securityholder
value.

Cash-settled incentive based on achievement of an
annual board mandated key financial hurdle paid in
three equal annual instalments starting one year after
the year of allocation.

3 Other than the Company Secretary who has a mix of 58%, 21% and 21%.
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Total Fixed Remuneration (“TFR”)
The total of base salary, including cash, superannuation levy, vehicles and
parking and incidental benefits.

TFR is reviewed annually and is determined by reference to independent
external remuneration benchmarking information, taking into account an
individual’s responsibilities, performance, qualifications and experience.

‘At risk’ remuneration

"At risk’ remuneration is made up of two elements, STl and LTI. Before any STI
payments or LTl allocations are made the organisation must achieve at least the
board approved performance hurdle. Each of these components is discussed in
more detail below.

What is the key performance hurdle for ‘at risk’ remuneration?

Operating cash flow per security ("OCFPS”) has been chosen by the board as
the current key performance hurdle for ‘at risk’ remuneration. This is directly
linked to APA’s strategic goal of increasing operating cash flows over the
medium term, thereby improving total securityholder value.

Using OCFPS as the key performance hurdle ensures the interests of executives
and securityholders are aligned. If the security price rises over the period of
allocation, both parties benefit and likewise if it falls, both are similarly affected.

At the start of the year, the board, having regard to the longer term strategy
and annual budget, established the OCFPS gateway that needs to be achieved
before any STl and LTI was triggered. The OCFPS gateway was not changed
over the course of the year.

Short-term incentive (“STI”)

A cash-based incentive used to reward strong performance against the
achievement of financial and non-financial targets or key performance
indicators.

What is the purpose of the STI plan?
The STl plan is designed to put a proportion of executive remuneration ‘at risk’
against meeting key performance indicators (“KPIs”) linked to:

How is the STl reward delivered?

— various financial measures such as cost control, revenue and cash generation
and capital expenditure management. This reflects APA’s strategic goal of
increasing OCFPS over the medium term, thereby increasing securityholder
returns and aligning the interests of STI participants with those of
securityholders; and

— non-financial targets through the delivery of individual KPIs linked to long-
term strategic measures including health, safety and environment targets,
and reinforcement of an ethical and values based culture.

At least 50% of the key management personnels’ KPIs are linked to financial
measures.

How is performance measured?

At the beginning of the financial year, the board, at the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, determines the appropriate financial and non-
financial KPIs for the Chief Executive Officer. The board also reviews the KPIs
the Chief Executive Officer will use to assess the performance of his direct
reports.

At the end of the financial year, after the audited financial results are available
and provided that the performance hurdle is met, the board determines the
performance against KPIs of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Executive
Officer’s direct reports and approves the STI amounts to be paid.

What is the performance hurdle?

STl payments are made from the general operating budget. Executives
participating in the STI will not receive any incentive payments unless the
performance hurdle for the financial year is reached and individual KPIs have
been achieved.

What is the value of the STl opportunity?

The STl amount payable is capped at the STI target amount. That is, the Chief
Executive Officer’s STl is capped at 30% of TRO and for his direct reports at
25% of TRO%.

All STI payments are made in cash and paid in September of the new financial year following the completion of audit of the annual accounts.

For FY 2012, the STI outcomes are shown in the table below for all key management personnel:

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL STI EARNED ($)

STIEARNED (%)

STI FORFEITED ($) STI FORFEITED (%)

Michael McCormack 700,350
Peter Fredricson 292,395
Ross Gersbach 321,563
Robert Wheals @ 17,369
John Ferguson @ 119,747
Stephen Ohl 182,125
Mark Knapman 132,922
Peter Wallace 147,345

92.00 60,900 8.00
96.50 10,605 3.50
93.75 21,437 6.25
90.00 13,041 10.00
94.00 7,643 6.00
77.50 52,875 22.50
88.25 17,698 1.75
94.00 9,405 6.00

(1) Appointed to key management positions on 1 April 2012. STI has been prorated.

4 Other than for the Company Secretary whose STl is capped at 21% of TRO.
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Long-term incentive (“LTI”)
A cash-settled incentive used to link executive reward to securityholder value
based on the achievement of key financial measures.

What is the purpose of the LTI?
The LTI plan is designed to put a proportion of executive remuneration at risk
against meeting financial targets linked to OCFPS.

This reflects APA’s strategic goal of increasing OCFPS over the medium term,
thereby increasing total securityholder value and aligning the interests of LTI
participants with those of securityholders.

What form does the LTI take?

Eligible participants are entitled to an LTI allocation in the form of reference
units which exactly mirror the value of APA securities. The reference units
allocated under the LTI plan are not actual APA securities, but notional
securities with a value equivalent to the LTI allocation.

Each reference unit is valued at the equivalent of the 30 trading day volume
weighted average market price (“VWAP”) of an APA security immediately prior
to the opening of the APA security trading window, following the announcement
of APA’s annual financial results to the ASX.

What is the value of the LTI opportunity?

LTI participants are advised of their maximum LTI opportunity, expressed as a
percentage of their TRO. The actual individual LTI allocation is determined at
the completion of the financial year and is based on OCFPS performance
relative to the achievement of the performance target.

The maximum LTI allocation is capped at 120% of the participant’s maximum
LTI opportunity.

What is the performance target?

No LTI allocations are made unless APA achieves the target OCFPS and the
OCFPS result determines the size of participants’ LTI allocations up to their
maximum LTI allocation.

How are the LTI allocations delivered?

An LTI allocation vests in three equal instalments over the three financial years
following the allocation, with the initial one-third vesting at the end of the first
financial year, one-third at the end of the second financial year, and one-third
at the end of the third financial year.

As LTI allocations are subject to the achievement of a pre-allocation
performance hurdle, they are not subject to further performance tests at the
vesting dates. However, participants must remain employed by APA to access
the vested benefit.

Upon vesting, the LTI is delivered in cash. The cash payment is equal to the
number of reference units vesting on the vesting date multiplied by the 30
trading day VWAP of APA securities immediately prior to the opening of the
APA security trading window, following the announcement of APA’s annual
financial results to the ASX. APA provides fully in its accounts for the obligations
of the LTI in the year in which the LTI allocation is made.

What rights are attached to an LTI reference unit?

The LTl is a cash-settled plan and participants are not allocated APA securities.
LTl allocations do not entitle participants to vote at securityholders meetings or
to be paid distributions.

No options or other equity instruments are issued to APA employees or
directors under the LTI plan.
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Changes to STI and LTI hurdles for the 2013 reporting period
The board has conducted a review of the Total Package Opportunity Incentive
Plan (“TPOI Plan”) over the course of the previous year and have decided to
implement changes within the plan. These changes have been made to more
directly align the interests of plan participants and security holders and
secondly to allow the board to reward superior performance.

The STl component will remain linked to OCFPS and executive STl awards, once
this hurdle has been met, will remain a factor of individual KPIs as set by the
board.

The LTI component will adopt two new hurdles in place of the previous hurdle
(being OCFPS). These hurdles, which will be weighted equally, will firstly be
Total Securityholder Returns (“TSR”) performance against the ASX 100
comparator group and secondly, performance against targets set for Earnings
Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation divided by Funds Employed
(“EBITDA/FE™).

These new LTI measures of TSR and EBITDA/FE are appropriate longer term
award hurdles based on the integrity of earnings performance against the
funds employed and the experience of APA securityholders compared to the
general shareholder market.

The TSR hurdle is linked to APA’s ranking relative to the ASX 100. Rewards do
not commence until APA achieves a relative position of P50. On achieving P50
than executive awards increase as the APA performance increases relative to
the ASX 100.

The EBITDA/FE hurdle has been set to reflect improvement on the previous
year. Awards do not commence until this improvement has been achieved. On
achieving this improvement then executive awards increase as the EBITDA/FE
performance increases.

For both STl and LTI measures, executives can earn from zero (minimum hurdle
has not been achieved) to 150% of available award (stretch hurdles have been
achieved) with the target reward being approximately 80% of the total possible.

All other aspects of the TPOI Plan structure and design will remain the same. It
is felt these changes create an even closer link between the interests of all
stakeholders in the Group. Because the remuneration structure must remain
flexible to meet ever changing circumstances the board will continue to
monitor the TPOI plan to ensure its continued relevance.

Actual remuneration received during FY 2012

Actual remuneration received by the Managing Director and other key
management personnel is defined as the ‘take home’ pay received by them in
the relevant year.

Actual LTI payments represent the amount of reference units that vested and
were converted to cash payments to the individual during the year, regardless
of when the LTI was initially allocated.

What amounts are excluded?

The table below does not show LTI allocations in FY 2012 or previous years that
are still subject to performance or employment conditions because those LTI
allocations are still at-risk of forfeiture.

The table below sets out actual cash payments made to the relevant key
management personnel during FY 2012. This table differs from the information
disclosed in Note 46 of the financial report for Australian Pipeline Trust that
reflects the total remuneration earned by key management personnel in FY
2012, but not yet fully paid due to future vesting of LTI earned.

The major differences are in respect of STI entitlements for which the amount
paid in FY 2012 represents the amount earned in FY 2011, and LTI allocations for
which the amounts paid in FY 2012 relate to allocations made in prior years that
have vested in FY 2012.
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The following table outlines the actual remuneration received by key management personnel during FY 2012:

TOTAL FIXED TOTAL PAID TOTAL PAID

REMUNERATION STl LTI 2012 20m

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL $ $ $ $ $
Michael McCormack 1,015,000 621,000 755,517 2,391,517 1,980,114
Peter Fredricson 606,000 270,750 107,105 983,855 798,125
Ross Gersbach 686,000 308,750 328,457 1,323,207 1102,722
Robert Wheals @ 346,980 100,000 90,407 537,387 -
John Ferguson @ 340,723 91,300 101,221 533,244 -
Stephen Ohl 470,000 201,375 248,334 919,709 799,684
Mark Knapman 415,780 130,706 130,897 677,383 589,081
Peter Wallace ® 304,872 34,356 - 339,228 73,809
Total 4,185,355 1,758,237 1,761,938 7,705,530 5,343,535

(1) Peter Wallace joined APA as Group Manager Human Resources on 4 April 2011. STl and LTI earned for FY 2011 but not paid until future years are disclosed in the financial report.

(2) Robert Wheals and John Ferguson were internal appointments to key management positions on 1 April 2012. Total STl and LTI remuneration relates to the full financial year FY12.

Current LTI reference units outstanding

The following table sets out the number of reference units that have been allocated to key management personnel but have not yet vested or been paid, and the

years in which they will vest, based on an estimated VWAP of $4.79:

VESTING YEAR
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REFEB:EI-:gEc E:I)I:S m 2012? 2013 2014 2015
Michael McCormack 616,281 220,638 199,171 132,945 63,527
Peter Fredricson 215,717 55,593 80,880 53,958 25,286
Ross Gersbach 285,555 103,598 92,012 61,321 28,624
Robert Wheals & 99,937 33,810 33,275 21,969 10,883
John Ferguson 100,779 36,235 32,488 21,425 10,631
Stephen Ohl 200,675 74,224 64,592 42,248 19,611
Mark Knapman 128,943 47,471 41,762 27,141 12,569
Peter Wallace 50,163 3,640 16,721 16,721 13,081

(1) Includes reference units subject to allocation by the board in August 2012.
(2) Reference units multiplied by 30 trading day VWAP to be paid as cash in September 2012.
(3) Robert Wheals and John Ferguson were appointed to key management positions on 1 April 2012.
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Executive contracts

The terms of the contractual arrangements for each of the key management personnel are set out below:

NAME, TITLE AND COMMENCEMENT DATE

TERM AND TERMINATION PROVISIONS/BENEFITS

Michael McCormack
Managing Director
since 1 July 2006

Chief Executive Officer
1 July 2005 to 30 June 2006

Commenced 1 March 2000

No defined term.

On termination with cause or following long-term illness or incapacity, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the
date of termination and any accrued leave entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 52 weeks TFR, any incentives earned but not paid on their due date
and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr McCormack is required to give APA twelve months’ notice.

Peter Fredricson
Chief Financial Officer
Commenced 1 June 2009

No defined term.

On termination with cause, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the date of termination and any accrued leave
entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 13 weeks TFR, any notice period not worked, any bonus entitlement
not yet paid and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr Fredricson is required to give APA six months’ notice.

In return for increased notice, non-compete and non-solicitation provisions, and due to the critical nature of the
role of Chief Financial Officer over the next three years with regard to the growth, integration and financial
challenges facing APA, Mr Fredricson was placed on a loyalty and performance bonus of $202,000 per year for the
three years commencing 1 April 2013.

Ross Gersbach
Chief Executive Strategy and Development
Commenced 1 February 2008

No defined term.

On termination with cause, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the date of termination and any accrued leave
entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 13 weeks TFR, any notice period not worked, any bonus entitlement
not yet paid and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr Gersbach is required to give APA six months’ notice.

In return for increased notice, non-compete and non-solicitation provisions, and due to the critical nature of the
role of Chief Executive Strategy and Development over the next three years with regard to the growth, integration
and financial challenges facing APA, Mr Gersbach was placed on a loyalty and performance bonus of $228,667 per
year for the three years commencing 1 April 2013.

Robert Wheals
Group Executive Transmission
Commenced 22 September 2008

No defined term.

On termination with cause, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the date of termination and any accrued leave
entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 13 weeks TFR, any notice period not worked, any bonus entitlement
not yet paid and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr Wheals is required to give APA six months’ notice.

In return for increased notice, non-compete and non-solicitation provisions, and due to the critical nature of the
role of Group Executive Transmission under the major restructure of the business, Mr Wheals will be paid $60,000
per year for the two years commencing 1 April 2013.
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NAME, TITLE AND COMMENCEMENT DATE

TERM AND TERMINATION PROVISIONS/BENEFITS

John Ferguson
Group Executive Networks
Commenced 29 September 2008

No defined term.

On termination with cause, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the date of termination and any accrued leave
entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 13 weeks TFR, any notice period not worked, any bonus entitlement
not yet paid and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr Ferguson is required to give APA six months’ notice.

In return for increased notice, non-compete and non-solicitation provisions, and due to the critical nature of the
role of Group Executive Networks under the major restructure of the business, Mr Ferguson will be paid $60,000
per year for the two years commencing 1 April 2013.

Kevin Lester
Group Executive Infrastructure Development
Commenced 6 August 2012

No defined term.

On termination with cause, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the date of termination and any accrued leave
entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 13 weeks TFR, any notice period not worked, any bonus entitlement
not yet paid and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr Lester is required to give APA six months’ notice.

Stephen Ohl
Group Executive Strategic Projects
Commenced 2 May 2005

No defined term.

On termination with cause, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the date of termination and any accrued leave
entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 26 weeks TFR, any incentives earned but not paid on their due date
and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr Ohl is required to give APA six months’ notice.

Mark Knapman
Company Secretary
Commenced 16 July 2008

No defined term.

On termination with cause or following long-term illness or incapacity, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the
date of termination and any accrued leave entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 26 weeks TFR, any incentives earned but not paid on their due date
and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr Knapman is required to give APA three months’ notice.

Peter Wallace
Group Executive Human Resources
Commenced 4 April 2011

No defined term.

On termination with cause, APA will pay any TFR due and owing at the date of termination and any accrued leave
entitlements.

On termination without cause, APA will pay 13 weeks TFR, any notice period not worked, any bonus entitlement
not yet paid and any accrued leave entitlement. APA will also pay any TRO due and owing at the date of termination.

Mr Wallace is required to give APA six months’ notice.
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Remuneration advisers
During FY 2012, the following remuneration information was sought:

— Egan & Associates were appointed by the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee to provide remuneration benchmarking information for all
directors; and

— Ernst & Young were appointed by the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee to provide benchmarking information for the Chief Executive
Officer and Managing Director and key management personnel.

Both those advisers were engaged directly on instruction by the committee,
reported directly to the committee and were independent and free from
influence by key management personnel.

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR

REGISTERED SCHEMES

Fees paid to the Responsible Entity and its associates (including directors and
secretaries of the Responsible Entity, related bodies corporate and directors
and secretaries of related bodies corporate) out of APA scheme property
during the year are disclosed in Note 47 to the financial statements.

Except as disclosed in this report, neither the Responsible Entity nor any of its
associates holds any APA securities.

The number of APA securities issued during the year, and the number of APA
securities at the end of the year, are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

The value of APA’s assets as at the end of the year is disclosed in the balance
sheet in total assets, and the basis of valuation is included in Note 3 to the
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the Auditor’s independence declaration as required under section
307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is included on page 89.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

APA is an entity of the kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/0100 dated
10 July 1998 and, in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the directors’
report and the financial report are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars,
unless otherwise indicated.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Responsible
Entity made pursuant to section 298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the directors

P T

Leonard Bleasel AM Robert Wright

Chairman Director

SYDNEY, 22 August 2012



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

APA Group (“APA”) comprises two registered investment schemes, Australian
Pipeline Trust and APT Investment Trust, the securities in which are “stapled”
together, and their controlled entities.

Australian Pipeline Limited (“Responsible Entity”) is the responsible entity of
those trusts and is responsible for APA’s corporate governance practices.

The ASX Corporate Governance Council’s Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendations articulate eight core principles of good corporate
governance and, for each of those principles, recommendations as to their
implementation. Adoption of the Council’s recommendations is not compulsory.
However, under the Listing Rules of ASX Limited (“ASX”) companies are
required to provide a statement in their annual report disclosing the extent to
which they have followed the recommendations in the reporting period and,
where companies have not followed all the recommendations, they must identify
which ones they have not followed and give reasons for not following them.

Each of the principles of good corporate governance has been responded to in
turn in this statement and the table at the rear of this statement provides a
checklist of APA’s adoption of the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s
recommendations. Explanations for departures from the recommendations are
set out in this statement.

Various references are made below to APA’s website as a source of information
on corporate governance practices and documentation. The home page for
APA’s website is www.apa.com.au, and the link entitled “About APA” leads to
the corporate governance material. Securityholders who do not have internet
access but wish to read that material should telephone 1800 992 312 (or
+61 2 8280 7132, if calling from outside Australia) and ask for a copy of the
relevant material to be sent to them.

In this statement the term “Reporting Period” means the period of 12 months
to 30 June 2012.

PRINCIPLE 1: LAY SOLID FOUNDATIONS FOR MANAGEMENT AND
OVERSIGHT

Board and its committees

The board of directors of the Responsible Entity (“board”) is accountable to
securityholders for the proper management of APA’s business and affairs. It
operates in accordance with a charter, which is published on APA’s web site.

The board normally meets 11 times each year, with additional meetings being
held as required. The number of times it met during the Reporting Period and
directors’ attendance at those meetings are set out in the directors’ report for
that period.

To assist the board in carrying out its responsibilities, the following standing
committees of its members have been established:

— Audit and Risk Management Committee;
— Remuneration Committee; and
— Health, Safety and Environment Committee.

Each committee has its own charter that describes the roles and responsibilities
delegated to the committee by the board, and those charters are published on
APA’s web site. The charters for the board and its committees are reviewed by
the board annually, and were last reviewed in July 2012.

The board delegates responsibility for implementing the strategic direction and
managing the day-to-day operations of APA to the Managing Director. The
Managing Director consults with the Chairman, in the first instance, on matters
that are sensitive, extraordinary or of a strategic nature. The board has
approved specific limits of authority for management with respect to approval
of expenditure, contracts and other matters, and regularly reviews those limits.

Non-executive directors’ letter of appointment
The current non-executive directors have each received a letter of appointment
documenting, among other issues:

— the roles and responsibilities of the board and each of its committees;

— expectations of the time commitment to be made by directors in serving on
the board and its committees, and of their participation in an annual review
of the board, its committees and individual directors;

— requirements with respect to the disclosure of directors’ interests;

— the fees payable to the directors; and

— key policies that directors are required to comply with, such as APA’s
securities trading policy.

Management: service contracts, induction and performance evaluations

The Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and other senior management
have service contracts setting out their responsibilities, conditions of service
and termination entitlements.

Newly appointed senior executives complete an induction program on the
management of the business covering topics that include financial matters,
strategic direction, operations, risk management, health and safety, environmental
issues and governance matters. APA also conducts annual processes relating to
talent and succession management, and the development of leadership capabilities.

APA has processes in place to review the performance of senior management.
Each senior executive, including the Managing Director, has personal objectives
as well as objectives related to the performance of business or functional units
and APA as a whole. They are reviewed against those objectives at least
annually. A performance review of senior management has been conducted
during the Reporting Period in accordance with that process.

Performance evaluation of the Managing Director is handled by the Chairman
with the assistance of the Remuneration Committee and a report is provided to
and reviewed by the board. Assessment and monitoring of the performance of
other senior executives are handled by the Managing Director who reports on
those matters to the Chairman and the Remuneration Committee.

PRINCIPLE 2: STRUCTURE THE BOARD TO ADD VALUE

Board membership

The board determines its size and composition, subject to limits imposed by
the Responsible Entity’s constitution. The constitution provides for a minimum
of three directors and a maximum of 12.

The names of the current directors and their experience, terms of office and
membership of board committees are set out in the directors’ report for the
Reporting Period.

The composition of the board is determined in accordance with the following
principles:

— a majority of the board will be comprised of independent directors;

— the Chairman will be an independent director; and

— a person cannot hold the positions of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer.

Under the Responsible Entity’s constitution, Petronas Australia Pty Limited was
entitled to appoint one director of the Responsible Entity while the Petronas
Group held not less than 10% of the issued securities in APA but, with the Petronas
Group having sold its APA securities in May 2012, Petronas Group has ceased to
have that right.

The Responsible Entity’s constitution requires one-third of its directors
(excluding the Managing Director and any director who is standing for re-
election after having been appointed as an additional director or to fill a
vacancy) to retire from office at the annual general meeting of the Responsible
Entity each year. If the calculation of that one-third is not a whole number, the
number of directors required to retire by this “rotation” process is rounded to
the nearest whole number. Retiring directors are eligible for re-election.
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The Responsible Entity’s constitution also provides that if the board appoints a
director to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the board, the new director will
hold office until the end of the next annual general meeting of the Responsible
Entity and is eligible for re-election.

Securityholders’ right to nominate a director and to vote on nominees

The Deed Poll initially executed by the Responsible Entity in 2004 and
amended with APA securityholders’ approval in 2011 (a copy of which is
available on APA’s web site) affords APA securityholders certain rights in
respect to nominees for the position of director on the board.

At least 75 days before annual general meetings of the Responsible Entity,
securityholders are notified by an announcement to ASX that they may
nominate a person to fill a vacancy on the board that arises on retirement of
either a director under the “rotation” process or a director appointed by the
board since the last annual general meeting.

If securityholders wish to exercise that right, at least 60 days before the annual
general meeting they must send the Responsible Entity a signed nomination
form and the nominee’s signed consent to act as a director.

The Responsible Entity advises securityholders of all candidates who have
been validly nominated and presents its nominations to the annual meeting of
securityholders.

Independence of directors
The board assesses the independence of non-executive directors on
appointment and annually having regard to the independence of directors

policy (published on APA’s website).

The directors’ report for the Reporting Period identifies which directors are
considered to be independent at the date of the report. A majority of the
current directors are independent.

Selection and appointment of directors

The former Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the board became
the Remuneration Committee in early 2008 so that the functions with respect
to selection and appointment of new directors and related matters previously
handled by that committee then reverted to the board. Ultimate responsibility
for such matters rests with the full board and the board considers the efficient
handling of those matters is not diminished by the absence of a Nominations
Committee.

The board considers that a diverse range of skills, experience and backgrounds
is required on the board to effectively govern the business. It determines and
reviews from time to time the mix of skills and diversity that it looks to achieve
in its membership. Having regard to the nature of APA’s business, that mix
includes financial, strategic, operational, legal, regulatory and general

commercial expertise.

When looking to appoint a new director, the board predefines the skills and
experience required of candidates for the role to ensure that the required mix
of skills and experience will be represented on the board and, based on that
work, seeks a list of potential candidates believed to satisfy those requirements.

If the board is not satisfied with the quality or diversity of the candidates
identified in that process, it may consider it appropriate to instruct a search
firm to identify additional suitable candidates. The board recognises that an
experienced search firm with a clear brief from the board as to the required
characteristics of candidates can assist in identifying potentially suitable
candidates from diverse backgrounds.

The Chairman conducts an initial interview of the short-listed candidates and,
subject to them being available for and interested in the position, they are then
interviewed by the board. The board assesses potential candidates against the
predefined requirements and also considers their qualifications, backgrounds
and personal qualities before the new director is appointed.
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In the interest of gender diversity, the board has determined that the short-
listed candidates for an available board position must include at least one
qualified female candidate and, where a search firm is engaged, the board will
instruct them accordingly.

Annual review of performance of the board, its committees and directors

A review process to assess the performance of the board, its committees and
individual directors is undertaken each year. The last review was conducted in
October 2011 and the review for the Reporting Period will be completed in
October 2012.

Each director completes a questionnaire, the responses are collated and the
board then meets to discuss and consider the results of that process and to
determine any actions arising from the review. The Chairman also meets with
each director to discuss the review and the director’s own performance.

Matters covered by the review include the role and performance of the board
and its committees, directors’ understanding of APA’s long-term objectives and
key risks to the business and achievement of those objectives, succession
planning and the effectiveness of the Chairman in leading the board.

Directors’ access to records and information, management and professional
advice

Subject to normal privacy requirements, directors have access to APA’s records
and information, and to the Company Secretary and other relevant senior
management personnel. They receive regular detailed reports on financial and
operational aspects of APA’s business and may request elaboration or
explanation of those reports.

While most board meetings are held in Sydney, where APA’s head office is
located, some are held in other locations where APA has a presence, providing
directors with the opportunity to receive presentations from and speak to local
APA employees about the business and to inspect APA’s assets and facilities.

The board collectively, and each director individually, may seek independent
professional advice at APA’s expense. Prior approval of the Chairman is
required, but this may not be unreasonably withheld.

Directors and senior management are encouraged to broaden their knowledge
of APA’s business and to keep abreast of developments in business more
generally by attending relevant courses, seminars and conferences. Where
appropriate, APA will meet expenses involved in such activities.

PRINCIPLE 3: PROMOTE ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION-MAKING
Code of conduct and policies

The board and senior management are firmly committed to ensuring that they
and all employees observe high standards of ethical behaviour and conduct.

APA’s code of conduct sets out the behaviour required of directors and
employees and recognises the responsibilities of APA and its personnel to
securityholders, customers, suppliers, employees and the community. It also
requires that breaches of the code are reported and provides a mechanism to
enable breaches to be reported without fear of retribution. The code is
published on APA’s web site.

A number of APA’s policies aim to foster a culture of compliance and ethical
and responsible decision-making. APA’s whistleblower policy encourages the
reporting of matters of concern and suspected wrongdoing, such as dishonest
or fraudulent conduct, breaches of legislation and other conduct that may
cause financial loss to APA or be otherwise detrimental to its reputation or
interests, and describes the protection to be afforded to whistleblowers who
report such conduct against reprisals, discrimination, harassment or other
disadvantage resulting from their reports.

APA’s securities trading policy, published on its web site, provides that subject
to some exceptions directors and designated management personnel must not
buy or sell APA securities during either of the following “closed periods”:
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— inthe period starting 1 January and ending on the second business day after
the release of APA’s half yearly results to the ASX, or

— inthe period starting 1 July and ending on the second business day after the
release of APA’s annual results to the ASX,

unless exceptional circumstances apply, and they may only buy or sell APA
securities outside those closed periods if they obtain clearance to do so in
accordance with the process described in the policy. Directors and employees
are precluded from buying or selling securities at any time if they are aware of
any price-sensitive information which has not been made public.

Diversity

APA values diversity and recognises that to continue to be a relevant and
innovative organisation, it must leverage the full potential of its people.
Embracing individual diversity encourages diversity of thought, which is
conducive to better decision making and opportunity for innovation. It is also
about taking advantage of all available talent for the benefit of the organisation.
APA also recognises that creating sustainable shareholder wealth depends on
its ability to attract and retain an engaged, highly skilled and motivated
workforce. Therefore, diversity makes good business sense. APA has developed
a diversity policy that is available on its website.

Workforce gender profile (2012)

Currently within APA, women represent 27% of the total workforce (a 2%
increase from the previous year), 14% of leadership roles (the top three levels
of management) and 4% of technical roles, while 12.5% of directors on the
board are female.

Diversity objectives (2013)

While the APA workforce gender profile is consistent with organisations within
APA’s industry and similar male dominated sectors, APA is committed to increasing
the participation of women in the workforce in order to broaden the talent pool
from which leaders can be drawn and to strengthen the diversity of APA.

A working party was established to analyse APA’s current diversity status and
to determine trends and developments in addressing the diversity challenge.
As a result, the following objectives and initiatives have been agreed by the board:

— Attraction - focus on attracting new talent into APA:

« wherever possible, include at least one woman on the shortlist of
applicants for all management roles;

* include at least one woman in the selection panel for all senior
management roles; and

« expand recruitment training materials to include diversity awareness
and the value of a diverse workforce.

— Retention - focus on retaining talent in APA:

« continue to offer flexible work arrangements through part-time hours,
job sharing, flexible start and finish times and purchase of additional
annual leave; and

* maintain breastfeeding accreditation in relevant APA offices.

— Opportunities - provide both career and development opportunities for
women:

« implement an APA Women in Leadership seminar at least annually;

* maintain or improve women’s participation rates in leadership and
management development programs; and

« all nominees in the talent pool, both male and female, to have a
completed development plan.

APA will report on the progress in achieving these objectives in its 2013
annual report.

Diversity aspirations

In addition to the above objectives and consistent with its diversity policy, APA
will also be exploring its profile and opportunities for improvement with regard
to the age profile and workforce demographics, equity of pay and benefits, and

broader community demographics. These will be analysed and, where specific
initiatives are undertaken, included in subsequent reporting periods.

PRINCIPLE 4: SAFEGUARD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The board has established an Audit and Risk Management Committee, the
composition of which is determined in accordance with the following principles:

the committee will have at least three members;

— all members of the committee will be independent, non-executive directors;
and

— the committee Chairman cannot also be the Chairman of the board.

The directors’ report for the Reporting Period identifies the current members of
the committee and their qualifications and experience. The Chairman of the
board, although not a member of the committee, usually attends committee
meetings.

The roles and responsibilities delegated to the committee are set out in the
committee’s charter which is published on APA’s web site.

The Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Business
Risk Manager, other senior management personnel, as required, and the
external and internal auditors attend committee meetings at the discretion of
the committee. The external and internal auditors receive all committee papers
and regularly meet with the committee, without management present, at
committee meetings.

The minutes of each meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
are reviewed at the subsequent meeting of the board and the committee
Chairman reports to the board on the committee’s activities and

recommendations.

The committee is required by its charter to meet at least four times each year.
The number of times it met during the Reporting Period and the committee
members’ attendance at those meetings are set out in the directors’ report for
that period.

Audit functions and independence of external auditor

Apart from reviewing the integrity of APA’s financial reporting, the committee
receives reports from the external and internal auditors, monitors their
effectiveness and the independence of the external auditor, and makes
recommendations to the board on the appointment or replacement (subject to
securityholders’ approval, if applicable) of the external auditor.

The external auditor appointment and independence policy (published on
APA’s web site) documents the process for appointment of the auditor and for
monitoring the auditor’s independence. Pursuant to that policy, the lead
partner and the review or concurring partner of the external auditor must be
rotated at least every five years, followed by a two year minimum time-out
period during which they may not take part in the audit. APA’s auditor is
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Greg Couttas of that firm was appointed the
lead audit partner for the APA audit in December 2009.

The external auditor’s independence could be impaired or compromised, or be
interpreted as being impaired or compromised, through the provision of some
non-audit services or by the quantum of fees paid to the auditor for such
services. Accordingly, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
approved a list of non-audit services that the external auditor may perform and
the process for those services being approved, identified a list of prohibited
services and determined a maximum dollar limit on any non-audit services
provided by the auditor in any financial year.

Reimbursement of Responsible Entity’s costs
The Responsible Entity’s costs incurred in acting as responsible entity of
Australian Pipeline Trust and APT Investment Trust are reimbursed by APA. The
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actual cost recovery in the Reporting Period was $2,545,000. The Responsible
Entity does not make a profit, nor seek performance fees.

The constitutions of Australian Pipeline Trust and APT Investment Trust enable
the Responsible Entity to charge fees up to 0.5% per annum of the value of
gross assets; however, the right to charge such fees has been waived to the
extent it exceeds the Responsible Entity’s costs.

PRINCIPLE 5: MAKE TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE

APA’s market disclosure policy, published on APA’'s web site, aims to ensure
that information that a person could reasonably expect to have a material
effect on the APA security price, whether the information is positive or
negative, is announced to the market by release to ASX in accordance with the
ASX Listing Rules and the Corporations Act 2001.

The Company Secretary is the nominated continuous disclosure officer.

All ASX announcements are posted on APA’s web site as soon as reasonably
possible after notification to ASX.

PRINCIPLE 6: RESPECT THE RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Communications with securityholders

APA aims to ensure its securityholders are informed of all significant
developments affecting APA’s state of affairs and business. Information is
communicated to securityholders by a number of means, including the following:

— anannual statutory report (comprising the financial report, directors’ report
and audit report) sent to securityholders who have elected to receive the
report;

— an annual review sent to securityholders who elect to receive either the
statutory report or the annual review alone;

— a biannual newsletter sent to securityholders who have not elected to
receive the annual report, and to all securityholders on the announcement
of the half year results;

— the interim (half yearly) report and directors’ commentary on that report;

— announcements to ASX and media releases;

— “Open Briefings” prepared from time to time to provide an update to
investors, and released to ASX;

— analyst briefings and investor presentations released to ASX;

— the Investor Centre section of APA’s web site on which the reports, ASX
and media releases, presentations and other documents referred to above
are posted;

— the annual meeting of securityholders; and

— webcasting of half year and full year results presentations, the annual
meeting and announcements of major events.

Securityholders and others may elect on APA’s web site to receive ASX and
media announcements and newsletters by email.

Annual meeting of securityholders

APA encourages securityholders to participate in its annual meetings. A notice
of annual meeting setting out the agenda for the meeting and explaining
resolutions on which securityholders may vote is sent to all securityholders and
to ASX prior to the meeting. Securityholders who cannot attend a meeting in
person may appoint a proxy and may also read the Chairman and Managing
Directors’ addresses that are sent to ASX and posted on APA’s web site, and
listen to a web cast of the meeting available through the web site.

At the annual meeting the Chairman encourages questions and comments
from securityholders and seeks to ensure the meeting is managed to give
securityholders an opportunity to participate. In the interests of clarity,
questions on operational matters may be answered by the Managing Director
or another appropriate member of senior management. Securityholders are
also invited to send written questions ahead of the meeting and, where there is
a common theme to a number of questions, either the Chairman or the
Managing Director will commonly seek to provide an answer in their address.
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The external auditor attends the annual meetings and is available to respond to
questions from securityholders about the conduct of the audit and the
preparation and content of the independent audit report.

The 2012 annual meeting of securityholders will be held in Sydney on 25
October 2012. A notice of that meeting and a proxy form will be sent to
securityholders some weeks before the meeting, and details of the meeting are
also available from APA’s web site.

PRINCIPLE 7: RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK

The identification and effective management of risk, including calculated risk-
taking, are viewed as an essential part of APA’s approach to creating long-term
securityholder value.

The board is responsible for adopting and reviewing APA’s approach to the
identification, evaluation and management of business risks that are material to
the fulfilment of APA’s business objectives.

The board has delegated certain activities to its Audit and Risk Management
Committee, the charter for which is published on APA’s web site. With respect
to business risk, the committee’s primary function is to maintain and oversee a
sound system of internal risk management controls based on the board’s
adopted risk management approach.

Specific risk management responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee include:

reviewing and approving APA’s updated risk profile, and risk management
policy and framework;

— reviewing at least annually APA’s implementation of the risk management

policy and framework; and

— receiving and reviewing management’s report on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems and otherwise monitoring the
effectiveness of the risk management framework and the system of internal
control, and progress against agreed risk management plans.

The Managing Director is accountable for ensuring that a risk management
system is established, implemented and maintained in accordance with APA’s
risk management policy and framework.

Senior management is accountable for risk management within the areas
under their control, including devolution of the risk management process to
operational managers, and is responsible for:

— reviewing the measures of risk impact severity that underlies the
identification of material business risks, to ensure the measures remain
current to APA’s context;

— identifying material business risks that may impact on APA’s business plans
and objectives and the development, implementation, performance and
review of risk management plans. In doing so, senior management considers
both
environmental, strategic, market related, compliance and reputation risk;

financial risk and non-financial risk, including operational,

— aggregating operational risk data across APA, and monitoring external
factors, to facilitate monitoring of APA’s risk profile; and

— contributing advice, leadership and facilitation in the development of

group-wide risk control solutions.

The Business Risk Manager, who reports to the Chief Financial Officer and
usually attends meetings of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, is
responsible for:

— overseeing and facilitating the co-ordination of the risk management
activities of senior management;

— reporting regularly to the Audit and Risk Management Committee on APA’s risk
profile and the implementation and effectiveness of risk management plans;

— contributing leadership and facilitation of the implementation of group-
wide risk control solutions; and
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— working with senior management to design and develop risk education and
communication forums.

APA’s management has reported to the Audit and Risk Management Committee as
to its assessment of the effectiveness of management by APA of its material risks.

In the course of approving the financial statements for the Reporting Period,
the board considered a written statement from the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer to the effect that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, their declaration pursuant to section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001
(broadly, that the financial statements give a true and fair view in all material
respects of APA’s financial position and comply in all material respects with
relevant accounting standards) is founded on a sound system of risk
management and internal control and that system is operating effectively in all
material respects in relation to financial reporting risks, based on the
management framework adopted by APA.

PRINCIPLE 8: REMUNERATE FAIRLY AND RESPONSIBLY

Remuneration Committee

The board has established a Remuneration Committee to consider and make
recommendations to the board on, among other things, remuneration policies
applicable to board members and senior management.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee is determined in accordance
with the following principles:

— the committee will have at least three members;

— all members of the committee will be non-executive directors and a majority
of them will be independent directors; and

— the committee Chairman will be an independent director.

The directors’ report for the Reporting Period identifies the current members of
the committee and their qualifications and experience. The Chairman of the board,
although not a member of the committee, usually attends committee meetings.

The roles and responsibilities delegated to the Remuneration Committee are
set out in the committee’s charter which is published on APA’s web site.

The Managing Director attends meetings of the committee by invitation when
required to report on and discuss senior management performance and other
remuneration matters.

The committee Chairman reports to the board on the committee’s activities
and recommendations.

The committee is required by its charter to meet at least twice each year. The
number of times it met during the Reporting Period and the committee members’
attendance at those meetings are set out in the directors’ report for that period.

External advice

The committee can seek external professional advice on any matter within its
terms of reference. As stated in APA’s remuneration report referred to below,
independent remuneration consultants were engaged by the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee to provide comparative market data with respect to
non-executive director and executive remuneration during the Reporting
Period.

Remuneration report

The Corporations Act 2001 does not require registered investment schemes like
Australian Pipeline Trust and APT Investment Trust to include a remuneration
report as part of the annual directors’ report, but APA has chosen to do so for
the Reporting Period and prior periods.

The remuneration report distinguishes the structure of non-executive directors’
remuneration from that of the Managing Director and other senior executives,
and sets out details of the components of remuneration and total remuneration
paid to those individuals over the Reporting Period.

Unvested benefits under APA’s long term incentive plan

The remuneration report also describes the APA long term incentive (LTI) plan
under which the benefits to executives who participate in the plan are related
to the price of APA securities and vest over three years. An aim of the LTI plan
is to align the interests of the LTI participants with the interests of APA
securityholders. APA recognises that the use of arrangements such as hedging
or derivative financial products that operate to limit for LTI participants the
economic risk of their unvested LTI benefits are likely to reduce the intended
alignment of those interests. Consequently, it is APA policy that LTI participants
must not use, nor allow to be used, any such arrangements in relation to their
unvested LTI benefits.

Retirement benefits

In 2003 the board terminated the non-executive directors’ retirement benefit
plan so that the benefits to participating directors that had accrued up to
termination were then quantified and preserved for payment on retirement of
those directors. Under the plan, after three years service a director was entitled
to the equivalent of the emoluments received over the most recent 12 months.
After 10 years service, the entitlement increased to the equivalent of
emoluments received during the most recent three years. No additional
entitlement accrued after 10 years. For periods between three and 10 years, the
entitlement was calculated on a pro-rata basis.

Robert Wright is the only current director entitled to benefit under the plan on
retirement from the board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND RECOMMENDATIONS ISSUED BY ASX CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COUNCIL

COMPLY
YES/NO

PRINCIPLE 1: LAY SOLID FOUNDATIONS FOR MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT

11 Companies should establish the functions reserved to the board and those delegated to senior executives and disclose those functions  Yes

1.2 Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives Yes

1.3 Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 1 Yes

PRINCIPLE 2: STRUCTURE THE BOARD TO ADD VALUE

21 A majority of the board should be independent directors Yes

2.2 The chair should be an independent director Yes

23 The roles of chair and chief executive officer should not be exercised by the same individual Yes

24 The board should establish a nomination committee No (note 1)

25 Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the board, its committees and individual directors Yes

2.6 Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 2 Yes

Note

1. The board has chosen not to have a separate nomination committee, as explained in the section of this statement entitled “Principle 2: Structure the board to add value” under the

heading “Selection and appointment of directors”.
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COMPLY
YES/NO

PRINCIPLE 3: PROMOTE ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION-MAKING

3.1 Companies should establish a code of conduct and disclose the code or a summary of that code as to: Yes
— the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the company’s integrity
— the practices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the reasonable expectations of their stakeholders
— the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices

3.2 Companies should establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a summary of that policy. The policy should include  Yes
requirements for the board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity for the board to assess annually both the
objectives and progress in achieving them

33 Companies should disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity set by the board in  Yes
accordance with the diversity policy and progress towards achieving them

34 Companies should disclose in each annual report the proportion of women employees in the whole organisation, women in senior  Yes
management positions and women on the board.

35 Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 3 Yes

PRINCIPLE 4: SAFEGUARD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

41 The board should establish an audit committee Yes

4.2 The audit committee should be structured so that it: Yes
— consists only of non-executive directors
— consists of a majority of independent directors
— is chaired by an independent chair, who is not chair of the board
— has at least three members

43 The audit committee should have a formal charter Yes

4.4 Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 4 Yes

PRINCIPLE 5: MAKE TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE

51 Companies should establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to  Yes
ensure accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance and disclose those policies or a summary of those policies

5.2 Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 5 Yes

PRINCIPLE 6: RESPECT THE RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

6.1 Companies should design a communications policy for promoting effective communication with shareholders and encouraging their  Yes
participation at general meetings and disclose their policy or a summary of that policy

6.2 Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 6 Yes

PRINCIPLE 7: RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK

71 Companies should establish policies for the oversight and management of material business risks and disclose a summary of those  Yes
policies

7.2 The board should require management to design and implement the risk management and internal control system to manage the Yes
company’s material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being managed effectively. The board should disclose that
management has reported to it as to the effectiveness of the company’s management of its material business risks

7.3 The board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the chief executive officer (or equivalent) and the chief financial Yes
officer (or equivalent) that the declaration provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound
system of risk management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation to
financial reporting risks

7.4 Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 7 Yes

PRINCIPLE 8: REMUNERATE FAIRLY AND RESPONSIBLY

81 The board should establish a remuneration committee Yes

82 The remuneration committee should be structured so that it: Yes
— consists of a majority of independent directors
— is chaired by an independent director
- has at least three members

8.3 Companies should clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive directors’ remuneration from that of executive directors and senior ~ Yes
executives

8.4 Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 8 Yes
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AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 30 June 2012

CONSOLIDATED TRUST
2012 201 2012 201
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 6 1,032,398 1,078,113 58,386 63,019
Share of net profits of associates and jointly controlled entities
accounted for using the equity method 6 28,263 23,876 - -
1,060,661 1,101,989 58,386 63,019
Asset operation and management expenses (75,995) (82,190) - -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7 (110,409) (100,350) - -
Other operating costs - pass-through 7 (302,633) (381,733) - -
Finance costs 7 (240,643) (260,004) - (45)
Employee benefit expense 7 (132,913) (114,923) - -
Other expenses 7 (16,978) (18,102) (506) (€))]
Profit before tax 181,090 144,687 57,880 62,943
Income tax expense 9 (50,435) (35,862) (8,517) (3,555)
Profit for the year 130,655 108,825 49,363 59,388
Other comprehensive income
Gain on available-for-sale investments taken to equity 93,189 29,643 2,261 880
Transfer of (loss)/gain on cash flow hedges to profit or loss (29,867) 192,900 - -
Loss on cash flow hedges (37,774) (228,392) - -
Loss on associate hedges taken to equity (22,666) (2,100) - -
Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit plan (32,677) 3,072 - -
Income tax relating to other comprehensive income components 9,265 2,606 (678) (263)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) in the year (net of tax) (20,530) (2,271) 1,583 617
Total comprehensive income for the year 110,125 106,554 50,946 60,005
Profit attributable to:
Equityholders of the parent 84,693 69,585 49,363 59,388
Minority interest - APT Investment Trust equityholders 45,957 38,924 - -
APA stapled securityholders 130,650 108,509 49,363 59,388
Minority interest - other 5 316 - -
130,655 108,825 49,363 59,388
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equityholders of the parent 63,073 66,679 50,946 60,005
Minority interest - APT Investment Trust equityholders 47,047 39,559 - -
APA stapled securityholders 110,120 106,238 50,946 60,005
Minority interest - other 5 316 - -
110,125 106,554 50,946 60,005
EARNINGS PER SECURITY
Basic and diluted (cents per security) 36 20.4 19.7

Diluted earnings per security is exactly the same as basic earnings per security.

The profit for the year includes a significant item which has been audited.

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2012
CONSOLIDATED TRUST
2012 201 2012 201

Note $000 $000 $000 $000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 37 329,934 95,368 10 49
Trade and other receivables n 238,519 145,698 402,273 486,830
Other financial assets 12 420 - - -
Inventories 13 11,504 1,076 - -
Other 14 4,134 3,357 - -
Total current assets 584,511 255,499 402,383 486,879
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables 15 22,244 25,860 - -
Other financial assets 16 299,070 182,282 696,523 665,507
Investments accounted for using the equity method 17 512,948 479,409 - -
Property, plant and equipment 18 3,472,198 3,768,342 - -
Goodwill 19 411,883 515,344 - -
Other intangible assets 20 183,659 192,903 - -
Deferred tax assets 9 - - 149,760 148,242
Other 21 9,541 7,966 192 192
Total non-current assets 4,911,543 5,172,106 846,475 813,942
Total assets 5,496,054 5,427,605 1,248,858 1,300,822
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 22 175,028 135,651 98,427 98,675
Borrowings 23 - 900,000 - -
Other financial liabilities 24 59,307 44,986 - -
Provisions 25 65,883 54,731 - -
Other 26 761 2,347 - -
Total current liabilities 300,979 1,137,715 98,427 98,675
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 27 2,905,946 1,990,446 - -
Other financial liabilities 28 286,592 263,786 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 9 319,282 336,171 - -
Provisions 25 65,135 30,840 - -
Other 26 4,078 802 - N
Total non-current liabilities 3,581,033 2,622,045 - -
Total liabilities 3,882,012 3,759,760 98,427 98,675
Net assets 1,614,042 1,667,845 1,150,431 1,202,147

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2012

CONSOLIDATED TRUST
2012 201 2012 201

Note $000 $000 $000 $000
EQUITY
Australian Pipeline Trust equity:
Issued capital 29 1,138,205 1,192,779 1,138,205 1,192,779
Reserves 30 56,153 54,899 2,345 762
Retained earnings 31 32,785 19,054 9,881 8,606
Equity attributable to securityholders of the parent 1,227,143 1,266,732 1,150,431 1,202,147
Minority interests:
APT Investment Trust:
Issued capital 32 364,066 382,001 - -
Reserves 32 1,624 534 - -
Retained earnings 32 21,160 18,295 - -
Equity attributable to securityholders of APT Investment Trust 386,850 400,830 - -
Other minority interest 32 49 283 - -
Total minority interests 386,899 40113 - -
Total equity 1,614,042 1,667,845 1,150,431 1,202,147

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the financial year ended 30 June 2012

TRUST

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENT ATTRIBUTABLE

ISSUED REVALUATION RETAINED TO OWNER OF

CAPITAL RESERVE EARNINGS THE PARENT

$000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1July 2010 984,936 145 1,263 996,344
Profit for the year - - 59,388 59,388
Other comprehensive income - 617 - 617
Total comprehensive income for the year - 617 59,388 60,005
Payment of distributions - - (62,045) (62,045)
Issued under distribution reinvestment plan 39,782 - - 39,782
Institutional Placement 230,128 - - 230,128
Issue cost of securities (2,746) - - (2,746)
Tax relating to security issue costs 824 - - 824
Capital return to securityholders (60,145) - - (60,145)
Balance at 30 June 2011 1192,779 762 8,606 1,202,147
Balance at 1 July 2011 1,192,779 762 8,606 1,202,147
Profit for the year - - 49,363 49,363
Other comprehensive income - 1,583 - 1,583
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,583 49,363 50,946
Payment of distributions - - (48,088) (48,088)
Issued under distribution reinvestment plan 33,879 - - 33,879
Issue cost of securities (53) - - (53)
Tax relating to security issue costs 16 - - 16
Capital return to securityholders (88,416) - - (88,416)
Balance at 30 June 2012 1,138,205 2,345 9,881 1,150,431

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2012

CONSOLIDATED TRUST
2012 201 2012 201
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 1,104,107 1,165,338 - 217
Payments to suppliers and employees (604,786) (704,597) (272) -
Dividends received 51,294 45,890 58,322 62,842
Proceeds from repayment of finance leases 3,131 6,748 - -
Interest received 7,198 6,162 64 177
Interest and other costs of finance paid (225,375) (229,954) - (45)
Income tax paid - 442 - -
Net cash provided by operating activities 37(c) 335,569 290,029 58,114 63,191
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment (249,112) (231,051) - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 522 265 - -
Payments for available-for-sale investments 37(b) (11,665) (22,481) - -
Payments for equity accounted investments 37(b) (28,548) (91,392) (28,755) (24,812)
Payments for controlled entities net of cash acquired 41 (5,714) (171,077) - -
Payments for intangible assets (443) (8,000) - -
Proceeds from sale of businesses 42 475,523 3,145 - -
Proceeds from sale of equity accounted investments - 4,500 - -
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities 180,563 (516,091) (28,755) (24,812)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings 1,999,697 700,100 73,380 -
Repayments of borrowings (2,103,500) (620,633) - (183,598)
Proceeds from issue of securities 44,612 352,372 33,879 269,910
Payment of debt issue costs (13,819) (4,300) - -
Payments of security issue costs (72) (3,661) (53) (2,746)
Distributions paid to:
Securityholders of APT (136,504) (122,189) (136,504) (122,189)
Securityholders of minority interests - APTIT (71,741) (61,034) - -
Other minority interest (239) (165) - -
Net cash provided by/(used in) by financing activities (281,566) 240,490 (29,298) (38,623)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 234,566 14,428 61 (244)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 95,368 80,940 49 293
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 37(a) 329,934 95,368 110 49

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2012

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Australian Pipeline Trust (“APT”) is one of two stapled entities of APA Group (“APA”). The other stapled entity is APT Investment Trust (“APTIT”). APA is listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange (trading under the code ‘APA’), registered in Australia and operating in Australia.

The financial statements represent the consolidated financial results of the two stapled entities Australian Pipeline Trust and APT Investment Trust, together “APA”.
APT'’s registered office and principal place of business is as follows:

Registered office and principal place of business
Level 19, HSBC Building

580 George Street, SYDNEY NSW 2000

Tel: (02) 9693 0000.

The principal activities of the Consolidated Entity during the course of the year were the ownership and operation of energy infrastructure, including:

— Energy Infrastructure businesses located across Australia;

— Energy investments, including Envestra Limited (“Envestra™), SEA Gas Pipeline, Ethane Pipeline Income Fund (“EPX”), Energy Infrastructure Investments Pty
Limited (“EII”), Energy Infrastructure Investments 2 Pty Limited (“EllI2”), GDI (Ell) Pty Ltd (“GDI”), Diamantina Power Station Pty Ltd (“DPS”); and

— Asset management and operations services for the majority of APA’s energy investments and other third parties.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(a) Standards and Interpretations affecting amounts reported in the current period (and/or prior periods)

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current period and have affected the amounts reported in these financial
statements. Details of other Standards and Interpretations adopted in these financial statements but that have had no effect on the amounts reported are set out
in part b.

Standards affecting presentation disclosure

STANDARD IMPACT

— Amendments to AASB 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’. The amendments (part of AASB 2010-4 ‘Further Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project’) clarify the
required level of disclosures about credit risk and collateral held and provide relief
from disclosures previously required regarding renegotiated loans.

— Amendments to AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’. The amendments (part of AASB 2010-4 ‘Further Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project’) clarify
that an entity may choose to present the required analysis of items of other
comprehensive income either in the statement of changes in equity or in the
notes to the financial statements.

— AASB 1054 ‘Australian Additional Disclosures’ AASB 1054 sets out the Australian-specific disclosures for entities that have
adopted Australian Accounting Standards. This standard contains disclosure
requirements that are in addition to IFRS in areas such as compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards, the nature of financial statements, audit fees,
imputation (franking) credits and the reconciliation of net operating cash flow
to profit.

(b) Standards and Interpretations adopted with no effect on financial statements
The following new and revised Standards have also been adopted in these financial statements. Their adoption has not had any significant impact on the amounts
reported in these financial statements but may affect the accounting for future transactions and arrangements.

STANDARD IMPACT

— AASB 124 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ (revised December 2009) AASB 124 (revised December 2009) has been revised on the following two
aspects: (a) has changed the definition of a related party and (b) includes an
explicit requirement to disclose commitments involving related parties.

— AASB 2009-14 ‘Amendments to Australian Interpretation - Prepayments of  Interpretation 114 addresses when refunds or reductions in future contributions
Minimum Funding Requirement’. should be regarded as available in accordance with paragraph 58 of AASB 119,
the impact on future contributions and when it might give rise to a liability. The
amendments now allow recognition of an asset in the form of prepaid minimum

funding contributions.

— AASB 2009-12 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards’. The application of AASB 2009-12 makes amendments to AASB 8 ‘Operating
Segments’ as a result of the issuance of AASB 124 ‘Related Party Disclosures’
(2009). The Standard makes numerous editorial amendments to a range of
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations.




AUSTRALIAN PIPELINE TRUST AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2012

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
(b) Standards and Interpretations adopted with no effect on financial statements (continued)

STANDARD IMPACT

— AASB 2010-5 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards’ The Standard makes numerous editorial amendments to a range of Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations.

— AASB 2010-6 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - The application of AASB 2010-6 makes amendments to AASB 7 ‘Financial
Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assets’ Instruments - Disclosures’ to introduce additional disclosure requirements for
transactions involving transfer of financial assets. These amendments are
intended to provide greater transparency around risk exposures when a financial
asset is transferred and derecognised but the transferor retains some level